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HAZLET TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OFFiCE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

424 MIDDLE ROAD « HAZLET, NEW JERSEY 07730
www.hazlet.org

WILLIAM C. GECRGE i, 4.0,
Superintendent of Schools
(732) 264-8402
Fax {732} 264- 1559

Cctober 28, 2010 wasorge@hazlet.org

Honocrabie President and

Members of the Beard of Education
Haziet Townshin School District
Hazlet, New Jerssay

Dear Board Members/Citizens:

It is with pleasure that we submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Repert ("CAFR") of the
Hazlet Township School District (“District”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, This CAFR
includes the District’'s Basic Financial Statement prepared in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement 34. The District believes that this financial reporting
model provides all users of this document with much more useful financial and statistical
information than ever before. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness
-and fairmess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the District. To the best of
our knowledge and bellef, data presented in this report is accurate in alt material respects and is
‘reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of
the District, Al disclosures necessary (o enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
District's financial activities have been included.

The Comgrehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections as follows:

+ The Introductory Section contains a Table of Contents, Letter of Transmiftal, List of
Principal Officials, and an Qrganizational Chart of the School District;

¢ The Financlal Section begins with the Independent Auditors” Report and includes the
Management's [iscussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes
providing an overview of the District’s financial position and operating results, and
other schedules providing detalled budgetary information;

¢+ The Statistical Section includes selected economic and demographic information,
financial trends, and the fiscal capacity of the District, generally presented on a multi-
year pasis, '

¢ The Single Audit Ssttion — The District is required to undergo an annual audit in
conformity with the provisiens of the Single Audit Act of 1988, as amended, the U 5,
Office of Management and Budget Cicular A-133, Audits of States, tocal
Governments and Naon-Profit Crganizations, and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-
04 OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federai Granis, State Grants, and State
Aid. Information refefed to this single audit, including the independent auditor's report
an the internal controf and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and
grants, along with findings and questioned costs, If any, Is included in the single audit
section of this report.
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1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The Hazlet Township School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted
by the GASB as established by Statement No. 14. All funds of the District are included in this
report. The Hazlet Township Board of Education and ali its schools constitute the District's
reporting entity.

The District continues to maintain a high quality of education by providing a full range of
programs and services appropriate to grades Pre-K through 12. These include regular
education, programs for the very able students (gifted and talented), as well as special education
for handicapped youngsters placed within and outside of the District. One Early Childhood
Learning Center, three lower and two upper elementary schools, a middle school and a high
school comprise the District’s school facilities. '

Supervising District-wide goals is a District Superintendent, an Assistant Superintendent, a
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary, a Director of Curriculum, Instruction and Testing,
a District-wide Supervisor of Math and Technology, a District-wide Supervisor of Language Arts,
a District-wide Supervisor of Music/Athletic Director, a Director of Guidance and a Director of
Special Services. Each elementary school has its own Principal. The Hazlet Middle School has
one principal and one and one-half Vice Principals, and Raritan High School has one principal
and two Vice Principals.

The Board of Education ("Board”), comprised of nine members, each elected to three-year terms,
meets on the second Monday of each month for the agenda Board Meeting and on the fourth
Monday of each month for the regular Board Meeting. During its meetings, the Board determines
District goals and priorities, and conducts the business of the Board. All Board meetings are
open to the public and begin at 7:00 PM.

PTOs are highly active in the District and provide community support for a variety of programs
and activities for the children.

To maintain effective communications, each school maintains an active website with a monthly
newsletter available for the parents of the children in the school. Information about the budget is
available on the District website and conveyed through a series of budget discussions held in
throughout the District each school year the budget review process beginning in January. All
members of the community are invited to attend these meetings. The District maintains a
website that contains a wealth of District information and District contacts for public access. Each
Board meeting agenda is posted on the website prior to the meeting and minutes are posted after
being approved by the Board of Education.

Each of the schools in the District follows the District-wide goals and educational approaches to
the teaching of children, while maintaining a unique personality that makes up that particular
school. All curricula in our District have been aligned to the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content
Standards.

In March 2010, the New Jersey Department of Education released its 2010 Comparative
Spending Guide for all school districts in the State. The guide compares districts with those that
are similar in enrollment/configurations. The information on expenditures was taken from
certified 2008-2010 budgets on file with the State Department of Education. This report shows
that the District budgeted $12,286 per pupil while the average budget for similar districts is
$13,860 per pupil. According to the report, per-pupil costs range from a low of $9,999 to a high
of $24,306. Of the 89 other K-12 school districts in the state with enroliments between 1,801 and
3,500 children, Hazlet ranked eighteenth lowest in total cost per pupil.



Elementary Schools: Grades Pre-K through 6

For the 2009-2010 school year, the is comprised of an Early Childhood Learning Center serving
our preschool and full day kindergarten students (Sycamore Drive), three lower elementary
schools (Lillian Drive, Middle Road, and Raritan Valley) and two upper elementary schoois (Beers
Street, and Cove Road) that offer students a comprehensive educational program.

Sycamore Drive ~ a grade Pre-K fo K schoo! of 281 students. There is one administrator
and a staff of 22 teachers, instructional assistants and school aides. The school is located
on Sycamore Drive, Hazlet.

Lillian Drive - a grade 1 o 4 school of 294 students. There is one administrator and a staff
of 32 teachers, instructional assistanis and school aides. The school is located on Lillian
Drive, Hazlet.

Middie Road - a grade 1 to 4 school of 344 students. There is one administrator and a staff
of 28 teachers, instructionai assistants and school aides. The school is located on Middle
Road, Hazlet.

Raritan Valley - a grade 1 to 4 school of 323 students. There is one administrator and a
staff of 29 teachers, instructional assistants and school aides. The school is located on
Cresci Boulevard, Hazlet,

Beers Street - a grade 5 to 6 school of 263 sfudents. There is one administrator and staff of
23 teachers, instructional assistants and school aides. The school is located on Beers
Sireet, Hazlet.

Cove Road - a grade 5 to 6 schoot of 240 students. There is one administrator and a staff
of 23 teachers, instruclional assistants and school aides. The school is located on Cove
Road, Hazlet. '

The District's philosophy is that children leam best by being active learners. Towards this end,
the District has established an early literacy program where students begin pre-reading and pre-
writing as soon as they enter kindergarten. Each day, students are immersed in an environment
of books and educational materials.

The classroom teacher models appropriate reading and writing behaviors and reads to them
regularly. Gradually, students view themseives as authors and see themselves as readers.
Every attempt is made to make learning relevant. Studenis are taught skilis that are directly
applied to their reading and writing, which is then integrated into the various disciplines.

In math, students begin by using manipulatives. This tactile method enables them to develop
concepts prior fo being introduced to the abstract algorithms.

The Science program is hands-on and students are encouraged to investigate and explore. They
are scientists using scientific methods of inquiry and discovery.

In the Social Studies program, the students learn skills and concepts of geography, history,
economics and the social sciences. A tolerance curriculum has been recently integrated into the
Social Studies program as well,

A World Language program begins with grade 3 where the language of focus is Spanish.
In each elementary school, enrichment classes exist at each grade. Selected students are

provided with an enriched program and are expected to engage themselves in higher level
thinking and creative activities.



Hazlet Middle School
Grades 7 and 8

Hazlet Middle School is a grade 7-8 school of 549 students. There are two and a haif
administrators and a staff of 55 teachers, instructional assistants and school aides. The school is
located on Union Avenue, Hazlet.

Grades 7 and 8 are housed in the Hazlet Middle School. The school is organized around four
fearning teams (or schools within a school). Each team represents the four disciplines (Math,
Language Arts, Social Studies and Science) and world language. Teachers in these teams are
assigned approximately 250 students. Cross-teaming for instruction in the four major disciplines
promotes a collaborative approach. Teachers get to know the siudents much better, which
enables them to work closely with them on academic, social and behavioral issues.

The Math program is organized around the National Council of Teacher of Mathematics
Standards and the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards. Accelerated courses are
offered as Pre-Algebra in grade 7 and Algebra | in grade 8.

Language Arts encompasses reading, literature, writing, grammar, listening and vocabulary skills
and public speaking. The various components of language arts are integrated so that they are
more relevant to students. Research and study skills are incorporated into this program as well,

The 7" grade Social Studies curriculum focuses on a study of the Middle Ages, the Renaissance,
the emergence of modern Europe and the Industrial Revolution. The g" grade Social Studies
curriculum focuses on American history, In order to provide our students a meaningful, relevant
program, a thematic and chronological approach is used in both grades. Geography and civics
are integrated at both levels.

The Science program in Hazlet provides students with experiences that foster an awareness of
the role of science in their present and future worlds. I provides the students with an opportunity
to develop their individual potential for becoming responsible members of society. In this class,
they perform highly sophisticated scientific research. Accelerated Science 7A and Earth Science
are offered to students who qualify for the program.

The philosophy of the middle school is to meet the unique needs of the preadolescent child. For
students, this is a period of change and upheaval. This is a time when students are very
interested in the world around them and have a need to explore their options. Courses available
in related arts at grade 7 andfor 8 are art, music, computer technology, study skills, applied
technology, health and physical education. All students in grades 7 and 8 take a full year of
Everyday Spanish if they do not qualify for accelerated Spanish | or ltalian | which is taught over
two years.



Raritan High School

Raritan High School is a grade 9-12 school of 1,054 students. There are three administrators
and a staff of 88 teachers, instructional assistants and schooi aides. The school is located at 419
Middle Road, Hazlet.

Grades 9 through 12 are housed in Raritan High School. This educational facility boasts a state-
of-the-art auditorium, Global Communications Classroom and Television Production Studio,
which benefits not only the educational community, but the Township of Hazlet as well, The
school is organized by academic department. Each department represents the major academic
discipiines of math, language arts, social studies, science and world language.

The math program is aligned to address both the National Council of Teachers of Mathematics
Standards and the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards. The extensive math
curriculum includes integrated math, algebra, geometry, calculus, trigonometry and statistics.
Honors and advanced placement classes are designed for each of these courses,

Language Arts encompasses reading, literature, writing, grammar, listening and vocabulary skills
and public speaking. The various components of language arts are integrated so they are more
relevant to students. Research and study skills are incorporated into this program. Honors and
advanced placement courses are a key part of the curriculum.

The high school social studies curriculum engages students in exploratory research, genocide
studies, current US issues as well as psychology and world history. Opportunities for advanced
studies are provided for in the curriculum. An honors social studies program is also offered to
select students.

The science program at Hazlet provides students with experiences that foster an awareness of
the role of science in their present and future worlds. It provides the students with an opportunity
to develop their individual potential for becoming responsible members of society. A number of
students have the opportunity to take honors science. In this class, they perform highly-
sophisticated scientific research.

The philosophy of high school is to meet the many needs of its students. For students, this is a
period of change and preparation for career choices. Toward this end, in addition to the regular
curriculum, the school offers many courses that may lead to career interest and prepare students
with the academic foundation needed for college. Students are able to explore courses in art,
business, home economics, performing arts and technical education.

Special Education

The Special Education program is an integral part of each school. As of October 15, 2009, there
were 489 students classified as educationally-handicapped in the District and 26 students were
placed out-of-district. Most of the 489 students were placed in regular classes with Resource
Center support. In addition, a pre-school handicapped program is offered as well as classes for
those who have mild to severe learning and/or language disabilities and classes for multiply-
handicapped students.

Core Curriculum Content Standards

All District curricula are aligned with the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards.



Staff Development

The Hazlet Township Public School System provides its teaching staff with many opportunities for
professional development. ,

Our District focused on professional development activities in the following areas:
Professional conferences, workshops, articulation meetings between buildings for Pre-K-12
staff members, regularly-scheduled departmental and grade-level programs Pre-K-12,
District-wide in-service workshops and summer workshops.

Numerous professional development activities afigned to the New Jersey Core Curriculum
Content Standards are planned for the 2009-2010 school year. Teacher lesson plans were
monitored to include the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards. Professional
Development Plans, related to building objectives, included Pupil Performance and Student
Assessment,

In October the District held its annual full-day Professional Development In-Service using
many of its capable staff members to conduct training sessions. Additional afternoon
workshops are schedule throughout the school year.

Our District provides for a Tuition Reimbursement Program for approved graduate study.
District Administrators, Principals, Vice-Principals and Supervisors review staff Professional
Development Plans for alignment with professional growth opportunities.

District Standardized Test results were above the State and District Factor Grouping for total
student population in all grades and for all subject areas.

The District established a three-year mentor/novice teacher training program inciuding
professional teaching portfolios and action research.

A summer institule was established to offer support and guidance to new teachers and
mentors for the start of the school year.

Professional Development Opportunities were offered through the District's Professional
Development Academy totaling over 300 workshops for staff members, administrators,
parents and families, '

Partnership activities with local Universities facilitated professional development in early
literacy, mathematics instruction, mentor and novice teacher training and data driven decision
making.



MAJOR INITIATIVES

District-Wide Curriculum:

During the 2008-2010 school year; the District continued {o focus on increasing student
performance, with a major emphasis on early literacy; curricular initiatives included:

Kindergarten Screening

General Education Preschool

Directed Reading Assessment (Grades k-6)

Updated Intervention and Referral Services procedures at all schools
Expanded After School Tutoring

Basic Skills Targeted Reading Program (Grades k-12)

Increased enrichment students attending convocations

Writers’ Workshop (targeted writing program) training for elementary teachers
Parent workshops on reading, writing, science, technology and math

Staff workshops on literacy, mathematics and science instruction, technology integration,
inclusion/co-teaching and data assessment analysis

Study Island test preparation program

Learnia formative assessment program

Reading Plus on-line reading program

Acellus computer-based educational program

Advanced Placement (AP) teacher training

Mandatory participation and funding of AP exams

Increased bandwidth and upgraded Internet connectivity

Additional Smart Boards, Student Response Systems and Wireless Tablets

Technolegy:

District-wide technology is used to increase productivity, to enhance communication, and to
enrich curriculum and instruction. Every classroom, computer [ab, media center, and office in all
eight schools and the centrai office are linked together in local and wide area networks. All
administrators, teachers, and support staff have access to computers, printers, e-mail accounts,
and the Internet within their work areas. As of June 30, 2009, four of our eight school have a
wireless environment with laptop carts for the students use.

e The District has two full-time computer technicians, allowing one District technician to focus
on more complex and difficult repairs, while the other focuses on basic computer
maintenance and staff training. This also allows the District to host its own e-mail and
maintain a District website, which was significantly enhanced and expanded this year.

s This year District was able to purchase/replace over 150 computers, including portable labs
for the Lillian Drive School, Middle Road School and Raritan Valley School.

¢ The District purchased numerous Smartboards and other devices to increase the infusion of
technology in the classrooms and computer labs.



Pupil Enrollment:

The District completed the 2009-2010 fiscal year with an enroliment of 3,308 students, a
decrease of 66 students over the previous year's enrollment. The following details the changes
in the student enroliment of the District over the last ten years. The fable presents the actual
historical pupit enroliment, as of June 30, for the school years 1999-2000 through 2009-10.

Fiscal Year Student Enroliment Percent Change
2009/10 3,308 (2.00%)
2008/09 3,374 (2.42%)
2007/08 3,388 (0.76%)
2008/07 3,414 (0.41%)
2005/06 3,425 0.41%
2004105 3,411 0.32%
2003/04 3,400 (0.26%)
2002/03 3,409 1.06%
2001/02 3,374 0.09%
2000/01 3,371 (0.70%)
1999/00 3,342 1.82%

Community Involvement:

-3

The Veterans of Foreign Wars and The Ladies Auxiliary Post 4303 award bonds and
certificates to our students in grades 7-12 for their participation in essay and art contests.
Numerous events take place in our schoois honoring Veterans Day, Flag Day, Pearl Harbor
Day, Loyalty Day and Memorial Day.
Our community continues to acknowledge October as “Learning Disabilities Month™.
The Annual ltalian-American Special Needs Christmas Party continues active participation
involving members of the Board of Education, Hazlet staff and community members.
Career Days are held at ali schools, utilizing the talents of pecple both in and out of the
community.
The involvement of parents, staff and student suggestions in our Summer Reading Program
continues to be successful,
Our school facilities are used daily by community people and various organizations for
meetings and recreational purposes.
Hazlet Rotary continues to award scholarships to Raritan High School students.
Hazlet Foundation for Excellence awarded numerous scholarships during the 2008-2009
school year.
Hazlet Foundation for Excellence continues active participation in Special Olympics
Tournament of Champions.
Parent literacy fraining
The Athletic Department continues to raise funds from corporate sponsorship to support all
high school athletic teams and to improve our athletic facilities,
Our DARE program (Drug Abuse Resistance Education) for grade 5 students continues to be
taught by one of the Hazlet police officers.
The continuation of a partnership by Barnes and Nobie affords us to have all of our
elementary schools review summer readings.
Our Parent Special Education Advocacy Group meets reguiarly.
A Rocket Launchers Booster Association comprised of parents, community members,
coaches, teachers and adminisfrators coordinates the activities of all high school booster
organizations for all athietic and extra-curricular groups.
The Raritan MHigh School Athletic Hall of Fame committee of administraiors, community
persons, alumni and staff held the Raritan High School Hall of Fame dinner.

8



The District was recognized bPé the New Jersey State Department of Education for the Service
Learning Grant that aliowed 5" grade students to teach senior citizens to use computers.

The Hazlet Middle School continues to house the senior citizens twice a week in the school
while the new town hall is under construction.

Numerous organizations including HYAL, Boy Scouts and Girl Scouts use the District
Facilities to hold meetings and events.

Technology:

During the 2009-2010 school year, the District updated the 2007-2010 Three-Year
Educational Technology Plan and completed the 2011-2014 Pian.

District-wide technology is used to increase productivity, to enhance communication, and to
enrich curriculum and instruction.

in-service training were held, including classes in Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Website creation
and maintenance and the use of interactive Smartboards and other instructional tools were
offered to ali interested staff members.

The District hosts our own e-mail and website and all staff members have e-mail addresses.
All Schools have had an upgraded connection to the Internet, a full wireless has been
established in Raritan High School and Hazlet Middle School, wireless access points have
been installed in

Upgrading/addition of computer hardware, including new computer labs, and software
throughout the District.

Increased integration of technology as a reguiar part of classroom instruction.

The District maintains an up-to-date website that has been instrumental in promoting parental
communications with the District.

Raritan High School completed the Global Communications classroom.

Special Services:

During the 2009-2010 school year, the Department of Special Services, through twe part-time
behavior consultants, continued o address the needs of the autistic population and students
with moderate to severe behavior problems. Training for teachers, aides, and Child Study
Team members is on-going and includes topics such as: Applied Behavicral Analysis/Verbal
Behavior, pairing, manding, prompting, prompt fading, reinforcement survey inventories,
Functional Behavior Assessments, Behavior Intervention Plans and co-teaching.

The part-time early childhood specialist provided on-going training and classroom ceaching
and mentoring to the preschool teachers in the state-approved curriculum, The Creative
Curriculum. Data collection began with targeted goals incorporated into the Individual
Education Plans, as well as progress reports distributed three times this past year.

A half-day integrated preschool class was successful in that special education preschool
students were educated in a general education preschool class, promoting federal and state
mandates of instruction in the least restrictive environment. All preschool students were
educated in District this year, with one exception.

The Alternate Proficiency Assessment was administered to 25 students in total, 16 in-district
and 9 out-of-district. This represents an increase from the 2007-2008 school year, in an effort
to increase the percentage of the special education subgroup passing rate in the overall
District performance for Adequate Yearly Progress.

During the Extended School Year program, high school students continue to participate in
community-based experiences that promote career awareness, job readiness and pre-
vocational skifls. New this year is the addition of field trips. The focus remains on
socialization skills within the community and appropriate social skills interpersonally. A school
social worker provides weekly group social skill lessons weekly to students, based on the
research by Jed Baker. '



In the high school, the Structured Learning Experience Educator provided daily instruction to
special education upper classmen in the areas of job readiness, career awareness, job
applications, and daily living skills. The successful students received 15 credits for their
participation in the program that took them to work in the community at locations such as:
Best Buy, Barnes and Noble, Bayshore Health Center, and Lunch Break.

The special education Parents’ Advisory Group heid two meetings in District that provided
information on “Guardianship” presented by a special education attorney and “How Parents
Can Support their Child in School”, presented by the New Jersey Statewide Parent and
Information Resource Center. The group shared this service by inviting surrounding District
Parent Advisory Groups, while Hazlet Township was, in turn, invited to attend other District
group meetings. The sharing of this service was successful and it is anticipated will expand
to more communities.

The Professional Development Academy provided numerous trainings to special education
teachers, Child Study Team members, related service providers, nurses and aides. Some of
the workshops covered the following topics: Intervention and Referral Service pre-referral
interventions, co-teaching models, Assessment of Basic Learning and Language Skills data
collection, Special Education Medicaid Initiative, feeding/eating disorders, consultative and
integrative models for speech, occupational and physical therapy,

Four special education teachers were trained and certified in Wilson Reading Level 1. Itis
expected that the teachers will utilize the Wilson reading strategies in the resource rooms
next year and turnkey the strategies to untrained staff to expand the number of studenis
being served by this remedial reading program.

All home instruction procedures and documents were reviewed and revised to be current with
District practices. This work was done in collaboration with the high school guidance Director,
Special Education Guidelines were electronically sent to all principals for publication in their
Parent Handbooks for the 2009-2010 school year.

There were articulation meetings between 6", 7", 8" 9" grade teachers to improve
understanding of middle school and high school academic expectations for special education
students. Revised Individual Education Plan goals and objectives reflect more realistic and
meaningful information to be included in the Present Levels of Academic and Functional
Performance section of the Individual Educational Plan.

High school curriculum maps were completed through a collaborative effort between special
education teachers and general education content specialists in the areas of English, math and
social studies.

Business:

Accomplishment and initiatives for the 2009-2010 school year were as follows:

The Business Office sought out competitive bids on numerous projects. The Business Office
provides direct access to its budgetary system for all schools for input of purchase orders and
budgetary account review. This system was ailso used to develop the 2010-2011 District
budget.

The District made a profit in food service operations during the year and some of those funds
were reinvested into new equipment for the program, including the new kitchen at the
Sycamore Drive Early Childhood Leaming Center.

The District updated its 2005-2010 Long Range Facilities Plan for submission to the New
Jersey Department of Education and continued maintenance of our facilities.

The District applied for and has received commitment for over $500,000 in construction
grants from the New Jersey Economic Development Authority.
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Personnel:

The District employed 434 full time and 24.3 part time persons during the 2009-2010 school year.
The certificated staff numbered 331; 21 administrators and supervisors; and 302 classroom
teachers and educational support personnel (nurses, guidance counselors, child study team
members, etc.); 127.3 other employees, including instructional assistants, school aides, bus
attendants, secretaries and custodial and maintenance employees were also part of the staff.

One of the greatest challenges of a school district is to retain high standards for its staff,
especially during a period when acute teachers shortages in some areas persisted. The District
was able to accomplish this through a highly-competitive recruitment and selection process.
Additionally, an impressive array of in-service opportunities allowed staff members to stay current
and to improve their instructional skills; a hallmark of a progressive and innovative school district.

The District, for example, continued its new teacher mentoring program. All newly-certified
teachers and most teachers new to the District were assigned mentors as well as supervisory
advocates to assist them in their first year. District administrators further provided these teachers
with an extensive in-service program and meetings throughout the school year designed to help
them acclimate to their new working environment.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
system designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse;
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally-accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state awards, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control system is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
reguiations, contracts and grants related to those programs. This internal control system is also
subject to periodic evaluation by the district management.

As part of the District's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine adequacy of
the internal control system, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations,

The District has retained Strauss Esmay Associates to assist in the revision and adoption of the
District Policy Manual and Regulations and the work has been completed.

A Standard Operating Procedures Manual has been drafted and is expected to be completed
soon., _
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5 BUDGETARY CONTROLS

in addition fo infernal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipalities. Annuai appropriated budgets
are adopted for the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Fund.
Transfers among line items are approved by the Board of Education and reconciled with the
requirements of P.L.. 2004, C.73, commonly known as S-1701. The final budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts {o be reappropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance at fiscal year end.

6. CASH MANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by State statute as detailed in the
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Note 3. The District has adopted a cash management
plan, which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the
provision of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in
1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in
public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the
Act.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and
contents, fidelity bonds and worker's compensation. A Schedule of Insurance Coverage is found
in Schedule J-20.

8. OTHER INFORMATION

independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Hutchins, Farrell, Meyer
and Allison, P.A., was selected by the Board to perform the audit. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet requirements of the
Single Audit Act of 1996, as amended and the related OMB Circular A-133 and the New Jersey
OMB Circular 04-04. The auditors’ report on the basic financial statements and as well as both
the required and other supplementary information is included in the financial section of this
report. The auditor's report related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit
section of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Hazlet Schoo! District

County of Monmouth

Hazlet, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Hazlet
School District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the District’'s basic financial
statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Hazlet Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States;
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Hazlet Board of Education, in the County of
Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Hazlet School District

County of Monmouth

Hazlet, New Jersey

Page 2

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued our report dated
October 28, 2010 on our consideration of the Hazlet Board of Education's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison information on pages
20 through 29 and 68 through 78 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted to inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inguiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Hazlet Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The
Introductory Section, Combining and Individual Fund Financia! Statements, and Statistical
Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal
Awards and State Financial Assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget ("OMB") Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB Circular
04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Granis, State Grants, and State Aid,
respectively, and are also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
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Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Hazlet School District

County of Monmouth

Haziet, New Jersey

Page 3

prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected fo the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statemenis and cerfain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accouniing and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole. The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not

express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Robert W. Allison
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 897
Hutchins, Farrell, Meyer & Allison, P.A.

October 28, 2010
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HAZLET TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
HAZLET TOWNSHIP

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Hazlet Township Public School District’s financial performance
provides an overall review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District's
financial performance as a whole; readers should alsc review the notes to the basic financial
statements and financial statements to enhance their understanding of the School District's
financial performance.

Financiai Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2010 are as follows:

¢ General revenues accounted for $49,252.505 in revenue or 95.78% of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and
contributions, and capital grants and contributions accounted for $2,170,672 or 4.22% to
total revenues of $51,423,177.

¢ Total assets of governmental activities increased by $1,048,569.

¢ The School District had $50,001,303 in expenses; only $2,170,672 of these expenses
were offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General
revenues {primarily property taxes) of $45,252 505 were adequate to provide for these
programs.

¢ The General Fund had $47,992,721 in revenues and $47,650,847 in expenditures and

transfers. The General Fund’s balance increased $341,784 cover 20609, This increase
was anticipated by the Board of Education.

20



Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.
These statements are organized so the reader can understand Hazlet Township Public School
District as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide
an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities
of the whole School district, presenting both an aggregate view of the School district’s finances
and a longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of
detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-
term as well as what remains for future spending. In the case of Hazlet Township Public School
District, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document confains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide
programs and activities, the view of the School district as a whole looks at all financial
transactions and asks the question, “How did we do financially during 20107" The Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities helps answer this question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the
current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those assets. This
change in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a
whole, the financial positions of the Schoo! District has improved or diminished. The causes of
this change may be the result of many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial
factors include the School District's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting
revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided inio
two distinct kinds of activities:

¢ Governmental Activities — All of the School District's programs and services are
reported here including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation
and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

¢ Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services

basis to recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food
Service enterprise fund is reported as a business activity.
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Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The anaiysis of the School District’s major (all) funds is included in the 2009-10 Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report as presented by the School District. Fund financial reports provide
detailed information about the Schoo! District’'s major funds. The School District uses many
funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial
statements focus on the School District's most significant funds. The School District's major
governmental funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and
Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money
flows into and out of those funds and the bailances left at year-end available for spending in the
future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statemenis provide a detailed short-term view of the School
District’'s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) and governmentai funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore,
these statements are essentially the same.
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The Schoel District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a
whole.

Table 1 provides a summary comparisan of the Schoo! District’s net assets for 2009 and 2010.
Table 1

Net Assets as of June 30, 2010 and 2008

Assets:
Cash and Cash E£quivalents
Receivables, Net
Inventory
Receivables From Other
Governments
Intrafund Receivable
interfund Receivable
Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

intrafund Payable

interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue

Noncurrent Liabiities:
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt Service
General Fund
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assels

2010

$ 2,720,643.98
18,911.10
14,061.53

1,125,182.89

1,715.37
18,632,960.30

2009

$ 2,511444.82
12,210.54
10.484.16

704,338.90
1,225.91

18.110,674.58

22.513,375.17

21.350,378.91

293,220.88
148,146.11

1,715.37
175,189.23

545,663.05
9.417.417.13

110,024 .46
155,807.54
1,225.91

35,467.43

487,745.23
10,103.000.84

10.581.351.77

10,893.271.41

11,372,960.30
1,223,971.23
1,447.215.14

(2.112.123.27)

10,445,674.58

1,343,659.18
0.88
1,105,625.11
585,907.00
(2.437.852.25)

23

$10,457.107.50




Table 2 provides a comparison analysis of District-wide changes in net assets from fiscal years

2008 and 2010.

Table 2

Changes in Net Assets

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Grants and Entitflements
Other

Total Revenues

Program Expenses
Instruction
Support Services:

Pupils and Instructional Staff

General Administration, School Administration,

Business Operations and Maintenance
of Facilities

Pupil Transportation
Food Service
Other

Total Expenses
increase in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

2010

$ 944,281
746,470
479,922

32,025,779
17,103,661
123,064

_51.423.177

28,765,824
6,429,637
11,167,292
2,163,743
1,022,707
472,100

50,001,303

$ 1421874

2009

$ 877,929
677,198

31,404,673
16,674,661
125193

49,749,654

—

28,443,249

6,545,618

10,639,908
2,387,318
1,007,564

452,704

mtromansimsmarsnmme e e

49,476,361

oo L

3 273293

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the need to routinely seek voter
approval for the School District operations. Property taxes made up 63.64% of revenues for
governmental activities for the Hazlet Township Public School District for fiscal year 2010. The
School District’s total governmental revenues were $50,319,397 for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2010. Federal, state and local grants accounted for 35.96%.

The total cost of all programs and services was $50,001,303. Instruction comprises 57.53% of

School District expenses.
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Revenues for the School District’'s business-type activities (food service program) were
comprised of charges for services and federal and state reimbursements.

¢ Food service revenues exceeded expenses by $69,941.18.

¢ Charges for services represent $861,605 of revenue. This represents the amount
paid by patrons for daily food services.

¢+ Federal and state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and
reduced lunches and donated commodities was $230,554.

Governmental Activities
The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services
and grants offsetfing those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of
services. The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the Schooi District's
taxpayers by each of these functions.

Table 3

Governmenial Activities

2010 2009
Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services Services Services
instruction $28,765.824 $28,230,502 528,443,249 $28,434,336
Support Services:
Pupils and Instructional Staff 6,429,637 68,429,637 6,545,618 6,545 618
General Administration,
School Administration,
Business 5,426,329 5,426,329 5,150,703 5,150,703
Operation and Maintenance
of Facilities 5,730,863 5,730,963 5,489,205 5 489,205
Pupil Transportation 2153743 1,610,551 2,387,318 1,825,837
Other 472 100 472,100 452 704 452 704
Total Expenses $48,978,596 $47,5000082 $48,468,797 547,898,403

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the
interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities invoived with assisting staff with the content
and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the School District.
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Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings
and equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development includes expenses related to planning, research,
development and evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information
internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from
school, as well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Other includes Special School expenses and interest and fiscal charges associated with the
payment of interest and other related charges to debt of the School District.

The School District’s Funds

Information about the School Bistrict’'s major funds is included in the 2008-10 Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report as presented by the School District. These funds are accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds (i.e., General Fund,
Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects and Debt Service Fund presented in the fund-based
statements) had total revenues and transfers of $50,595 873 and expenditures and transfers of
$50,376,907.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of
this reporf, the School District continues to meet its responsibilty for sound financial
management. The following schedule presents a summary of the revenues of the governmental
funds (excluding capital projects) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, and the amount and
percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues.

Increase/ Percent of
Percent {Decrease) Increase/
Revenue Amount of Total From 2008/09 {Decrease)
Local Sources $ 32,219,898 64 .65% 3 834,182 2.01%
State Sources 14 434 636 28.96 (%,795,309) (11.06)
Federal Sources 3,184,841 6.39 2,226 911 232.45
Total $ 49830475 _..100.00% 31065784 il 18%

The increase in Local Sources is attributed to an increase in real estate taxes.
The decrease in State Sources is due to a cut in State Aid.

The increase in Federal Sources is due o Federal Stimulus Funds.

26



The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt
Service Fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010,

Increase/
{Decrease) Percent of
Percent of From Increase/
Expenditures Amount Total 2008/09 {Decrease)
Current Expense:
Instruction $ 21,163,542 43.00% $ 687,313 3.36%
Undistributed
Expenditures 26,712,307 5427 357,183 1.35
Capital Qutlay 780,185 1.58 (591,000) (43.10)
Debt Service:
Principal 205000 0.42 15,000 7.89
interest 360,093 0.73 (10,639) (2.87)
Total $ 49221127 100.00% 457 0.94%

The increase in Current - Instruction is attributed to regular operating increases including
Salaries, Benefits and Tuition.

The increase in Current - Undistributed Expenditures is attributed to regular operations.
The decrease in Capital Outlay is attributed to budget cuts.
General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District’'s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting.
The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of the fiscal year 2010, the School District amended its General Fund budget
as needed. The School District uses program based budgeting and the budgeting systems are
designed to tightly control total program budgets but provide flexibility for program management.

Staffing changes based on student needs.

Additional costs for student expenses both in regular education and special education.
Accounting changes in mainienance and operations.

Changes in appropriations to prevent budget overruns.

Additional needs for technology and textbooks.

¢ @ & P @

While the School District's final budget for the General Fund anticipated that revenues and
expenditures would roughly equal, the actual results for the year show a $627 438 increase in
surplus funds for a total unrestricted free balance (GAAP) of $(354,618) at June 30, 2010.
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Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2010, the School District had $18,447,418 invested in land,
buildings, and machinery and equipment.

Table 4

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Land $ 4492635 $ 44928635
Construction in Progress 267,458
Site Improvements 1,334,453 1,524,459
Building and Improvements 11,850,245 10,838,351
Machinery and Equipment 770,085 826,877
Total $ 18447418 $ 17,949,778

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2010, the School District had $9,963,080 as outstanding debt. Of this amount,
$2,703,080 is for compensated absences, $7,060,000 for bonds for school construction, and
$200,000 for capital leases. In 1999, the voters of Hazlet Township approved an addition to
Hazlet Middle School and renovations to all eight schools in the amount of $7,755,000.

At June 30, 2010, the School district’s overall legal debt margin was $98,123,748.

Date of Issue Amount of Issue

Construction of additions and renovations 02/01/00 $ 7,775,000
to Hazlet Middle School, Beers Sireet School,

Cove Road School, Lillian Drive School,

Middle Road School, Raritan Vatley School,

Sycamore Drive School and Raritan High School

For the Future

The Hazlet Township Public School District is in good financial condition presently, having just
received a “Aa-" bond rating from Standard & Poor's. A major concern is the continued freeze
or decrease in state aid to education causing an increased refiance on local property taxes.

Hazlet Township is primarily a residential community, with very few ratables; thus the burden is
focused on homeowners to foot the tax burden.

During the budget process in the spring, it was a concern to the Administration and Board of
Education how future budgets would be financed. Therefore during the past year and
continuing into the present, the Board of Education and administration have conducted a
program review of costs centers in the district to determine where cost savings may be
effectuated.
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In conclusion, the Hazlet Township Public School District has committed itself to financial
excellence for many years. [n addition, the School District's system for financial planning,
budgeting and internal financial confrols are well regarded. The School District plans to
continue its sound fiscal management to meet the challenge of the future.

Contacting the School District's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the School District's finances and to show the School District's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact Christopher J. Mullins, School Business Administrator/Board
Secretary at Hazlet Township Board of Education, 421 Middle Road, Hazlet, NJ 07730 or email
at cmullins@hazlet.org.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the
District. These Statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. These Statements distinguish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the District.



Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable
Receivables From Cther

Governments
interfund Receivable
Inventories

Capital Assets, Net (Note 8)

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2010

Governmental
Activities

$ 246117210

1,125,182.89

18,447,417 .84

22,033,772.83

Business -Type

Exhibit A-1

196,859.16
148,146.11

1,715.37
171,297.48

545,663.05
9,417 417.13

10,481,098.30

11,187,417.84

1,223,971.23
1,447.215.14

(2,305,929.68)

$ 11,552,674.53

Activities Total
$ 259,371.88 $ 2,720,543.98
18,811.10 18,911.10
1,125,182.89
1,715.37 1,715.37
14,061.53 14,061.53
185,542 .48 18,632,960.30
479,602.34 22,513,375.17
96,361.72 293,220.88
148,146.11
1,715 37
3,891.75 175,189.23
545,663.05
9.417.417.13
100,253.47 10,581,351.77
185,542.46 11,372,960.30
1,223,971.23
1,447 21514
193,806.41 (2,112,123.27)
$ 379,348.87 $ 11,932,023.40

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial S##ements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund statements and scheduies present more detailed information for the
individual fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 201¢

Exhibit B-1

Special Capitat Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Gaovernmental
Fund Fund Fung Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,450,37%.44 $ 10,792.66 $ 246117210
Due From Other Funds 584,584 67 584,584.67
Receivables From Other Governments 322,633.56 322,627.23 3 47992200 1,125,182 .89
Total Assels 3,357,597.67 333,419.99 479,822.00 4.170,938.66
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payabie 139,398.70 56,480.99 195,879.69
Interfund Payable 1,715.37 104,662.05 479,922.00 s 062 586,300.04
Payable To Federal Government 2.47 2.47
Payable To State Government g77.00 977.00
Deferred Revenue 171,297 .48 171,297.48
Total Liabilities 141,114.07 333,419.99 479,922.00 0.62 954 456.68
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 237,659.71 237,659.71
Capital Reserve 1,223,971.23 1,223,971.23
Excess Surplus 913,468.16 913,468.16
Excess Surplus - Designated For Subsequent
Years' Expenditures 296,087.27 296,087 .27
Unreserved:
Designated for Subseqguent Years' Expenditures 899,915.73 899,915.73
Undesignated, Reported In:
General Fund (354.618.50} (354,618.50)
Debt Service Fund . (0.62) (0.62)
Totai Fund Balances 3,218,483.60 {0.62) 3,216,482.98
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 3,357,597.67 $§ 333,419.98 3 479,822.00 $ 000
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reporied in the governmental
funds. The cost of the assets is $33,030,816.49 and the
accumulated depreciation is $14,583,398.65 (See Note 8). 18,447.417.84

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
labilities in the fund (See Note 8).

Accrued interest on ong-term fiabilities are not reported as
liabilities in the fund.

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

32

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

(9,963,080.18)

148,146.11



Exhibit B-2
HAZLET 3CHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
Tuition From Individuals
Transportation Fees
fnterest Earned on Capital Reserve
Other Restricted Miscellaneous
Unrestricted Miscelianecus

Total - Local Sources

State Sources
Federal Sources

Totai Revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Regular Instruction
Special Education instruction
Other Special Instruction
Other Instruction
Suppert Services and Undistributed Costs:
Tuition
Stwdent and Instruction Retated Services
General Administration
School Administrative Services
Central Services
Administrative information Technology
Plant Operations ang Maintenance
Pupit Transportation
Unaliocated Benefits
Special Schools
Debt Service:
Principat
Interest and Other Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess/{Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/Under Expenditures

Other Financing Scurces/{Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers Cut
Total Other Financing Sources/{(Uses}
Net Change in Fund Baiances

Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2G10

Special Capitat Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Flunds
$ 31,500,058.00 $ 425721.00 5 32.025779.00
55,400.0C 55,400.00
27,275.50 27.275.50
3,219.10 3,219.10
8,650.00 8,650.00
59,673.21 $  39.800.77 99,573.98
31,754,275.8% 39,800.77 425721.00 32,215,897.58
14,250,662.58 44,304 .00 $ 479,822.00 138,370.00 14,914,558.58
1,987 .483.01 1,197 457.76 3,184,940.77
47,992 721.40 1,281,662.53 475922 00 565,091.00 50,319,396.93
16,276,955.70 892,783.85 17,169,735.55
2,731,729.54 2,731,729.54
488,776.28 468,776.28
793,296.37 793,296.37
1.438,487.90 _ 1,436,467 90
4,038,019.52 357,705.8% 4,395,725.41
1,054,479.44 1,054,479 .44
2,197,066.55 2.197,066.55
567,752.81 567,752.81
211,259.56 211,258.56
4,541,806.38 4,541,808.39
2,108,957.85 2,108,957.85
10,079,122.84 10,079,122.64
119,669.19 119,669.19
205,000.00 205,000.00
360,002.50 360,092.50
748,012.04 31,172.78 879,304.74 1,650,480.57
47,374,371.78 1,281,662.53 879,304.74 5865,092.50 50,100,431.55
£18,349.62 {399,382.74) (1.50) 218,965.38
276,475.69 276,475.69
(276,475.69) (276 475,69

(278,475.69) 276,475.69
341,873.93 (122,907.05) (1.50) 218,965.38
2.874,809.67 . 122,807.05 0.88 2,697,517 60
$ 321848360 $ 0.00 $ £.00 $ {062} $ 321548298
33

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,



HAZLET SCHQOL. DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds {from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Activities {A-2} are different because:

Capital outlays for fixed assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, on the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is aliocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current fiscal year.

Depreciation Expense $ (961,845.48)
Capital Qutlay 1,459,488.57

Repayment of bond and capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term Habilities in the Statement of Net Assets
and is not reperted in the Statement of Activities,

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses, &.g., compensated
absences (vacation and sick pay) are measured by the amounts earned during
the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these tems are
reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation;
when the paid amount exceeds the earnad amount, the difference is an
addition to the reconciliation.

In the Statement of Activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardiess
of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. )
The decrease in accrued interest over the previous year is an addition in the
reconciliation.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

34

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit B-3

218,965.38

497,640.09

405,600.00

222.665.80

7,662.05

$ 1,351,93342



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State
Federal
Other
interfund Receivable - Due From General Fund
Inventories

Total - Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment
Less:
Accumulated Depreciation

Total - Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

35
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Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

$ 25937188

1,149.42
14,701.42
3,060.26
1,715.37
14,061.53

294,059.88

542,330.13

(356,787.67)

185,542.46

$ 47960234

3 66,361.72
3,891.75

$ 100,253.47

$ 18554246
193,806.41

$ 379,348.87

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Exhibit B-5
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food Service

Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services:

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs $ 453,858.71
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs 404 716.81
Special Functions 3,029.24
Total Operating Revenues 861,604.76

Operating Expenses:
Salaries 281,797.49
Support Services - Employee Benefits 72,477.92
Purchased Professional/Technical Services 122,332.38
Other Purchased Services 24 570.56
Supplies and Materials 30,606.47
Depreciation 28,386.30
Cost of Sales 429,245 .33
Miscellaneous Expenditures 33,280.31
Total Operating Expenses 1,022,706.76

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses):
State Sources:

(161,102.00)

State School Lunch Program 13,612.98
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program 168,172.53
Food Distribution Program 48,768.21
Interest and Investment Income 489.46
Total Nonoperating Revenues 231,043.18
Change in Net Assets 69,941.18
Total Net Assets - Beginning, As Restated ( See Note 20) 309,407.69
Total Net Assets - Ending 379,348.87

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Exhibit B-6
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts From Customers
Payments To Employees
Payments For Employee Benefits
Payments To Suppliers

Net Cash Used For Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
State Sources '
Federat Sources

Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance - Beginning of Year

Balance - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income/{l.oss) To Net Cash
Provided/{Used) By Operating Activities:
Operating Loss
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Loss To Net
Cash Used For Operating Activities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Depreciation
Donated Commodities Received During the Year
increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Increase/(Decrease)} in Accounts Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Used For Operating Activities

37

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food Service

$ 862,436.25
(254,345.68)
(65,314.48)
(641,907.67)

(99,131.58)

13,436.36
164,708.85

178,145.21

79,013.63

18C,358.25

3 25937188

$ (161,102.00)

(3,060.26)
28,396.30
48,768.21

3,891.75

(3,577.37)

(12,448.21)

61,870.42

$  (99,131.58)

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Assetls

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investmenis

Due From State of New Jersey

Total Assels

Liabilities:

Payable to Student Groups
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes
Reserved for Scholarship
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Exhibit B-7

Private
Unemployment  Purpose
Compensation Scholarship Agency
Trust Fund Fund Totals
$ 88,19354 32.24  $ 34472100 $ 432,946.78
5,706.48 5,706.48
2,839.72 2,839.72
$ 9103326 $ 573872 $ 344721.00 $ 441492.98
$ 14713595 $ 147.135.95
197,585.05 197,585.05
344,721.00 344,721.00
$ 91,033.26 91,033.286
$ 573872 5738.72
91,033.26 5,738.72 96,771.98
$ 9103326 § 573872 $ 344,721.00 $ 441,492.98
38

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Additions:
Employee Contributions
Board Contribution

Total Contributions
Investment Earnings/(Losses):
Depreciation
Interest
Total Additions/(Deletions)
Deductions:
Quarterly Contribution Reports
Unemployment Claims
Scholarship Awarded
Total Deductions
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

Private
Unemployment Purpose
Compensation Scholarship
Trust Fund
$ 62,290.35
48,992.00
111,282.35
$  (89.81)
193.75 135.98
111,476.10 46.17
17,947.03
106,335.44
806.91
124,282.47 806.91
(12,806.37) (760.74)
103,839.63 6,499 .46
$ 91,033.26 $ 573872
39
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Totals

$ 62,29035

48,992.00

111,282.35

(89.81)
329.73

111,522.27

17,947.03
106,335.44
806.91

125,089.38

(13,567.11)

110,339.09

$ 9677198

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education ("Board") of the Hazlet School District ("District”)
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard-seiting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board's accounting policies are
described below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The Hazlet School District is a Type Il district located in the County of Monmouth, State of New
Jersey. As a Type I district, the School District functions independently through a Board of
Education. The Board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year staggered terms. The
purpose of the District is to educate students in grades K-12. The Hazlet School District had an
approximate enrollment of 3,308 students at June 30, 2010.

The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an
educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal
control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, is whether:

the Organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the District holds the corporate powers of the Organization

the District appoints a voting majority of the Organization's Board

the District is able to impose its will on the Organization

the Organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
there is a fiscal dependency by the Organization on the District

YV VY VYY

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

40



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

1. _SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting:

The School District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements, including a
Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Aclivities, and Fund Financial Statements which
provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Basis of Presentation

District-Wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display
information about the District as a whole. These Statements include the financial activities of the
overall District, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-
counting of internal activities. These Statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activity of the District. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-
type activity of the District at fiscal year-end. The Statement of Activities presenis a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for
gach function of the District’'s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues inciude (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods
or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not ciassified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The comparison of
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the exient to which each governmental function or
business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statemenis: During the fiscal year, the District segregates transactions related to
certain District functions or activities in separate funds in order fo aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. The Fund Financial Statements provide information about the
District's funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each Fund category —
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The New Jersey Department of Education
("NJDOE"} has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major
fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that
the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency
among District financial reporting models.
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Cont'd):

Basis of Presentation {Cont'd)

The District reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or
noninstructional equipment, which are classified in the Capital Qutlay subfund.

As required by the NJDOE, the District includes budgeted capital ocutlay in this Fund.
Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from
unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New
Jersey Aid, District taxes and appropriated Fund Balance. Expenditures are those that result
in the acquisition of or additions to Fixed Assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of
grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeiing of buildings and the purchase
of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by
Board resoclution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects,
Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than
those financed by Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary
notes or serial bonds that are specificaily authorized by the voters as a separate question on
the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of

resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on bonds issued tc finance major
property acquisition, construction and improvement programs.
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June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Cont'd):

Basis of Presentation (Cont'd)

The District reports the following proprietary fund:

Enterprise (Food Service) Fund - The Enterprise Fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to the Board's cafeteria operations. The Food Service Fund is utilized
to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The stated intent is that the costs (ie., expenses including
depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a
continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund.

Al Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or “capital maintenance”
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or
noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their
reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and unreserved
retained eamnings, if applicable. Proprietary Fund-type operating statements present
increases/(revenues) and decreases/{expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by Proprietary Funds is charged as an
expense against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on Proprietary Fund
balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the equipment used in the operations of
the Enterprise Funds are approximately 10 years.
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June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting {Cont'd):

Basis of Presentation (Cont'd):

The District reports the following fiduciary funds:

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets
held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust Fund - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the
same manner as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Expendable Trust Funds account for assets where both the principal
and interest may be spent. The Expendable Trust Fund includes the Unemployment
Compensation Insurance Fund and the Scholarship Account.

Nonexpendahle Trust Fund - A Nonexpendable Trust Fund is used to account for assets
held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the District is under obligation
to maintain the trust principal. At June 30, 2010, the District had no Non-Expendable Trust
Funds.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for the assets that the District holds
on behalf of others as their agent. Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. Agency Funds include Payroll and Student
Activities Funds.
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Cont'd):

Basis of Accounting

Basis of Accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements.

District-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use
the modified accrual basis of accounting; the Enterprise Fund and Fiduciary Funds use the accrual
basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus
expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as, under New Jersey State
Statute, a municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the
amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school! year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment
schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “Accounts Receivabie”. Revenue from
grants, entitiements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. '

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental Funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. “Measurable”™ means the
amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current
period or soon enocugh thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general iong-
term debt, claims and judgments, and compensaled absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reporied as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

All governmental and business-type activities and Enterprise Funds of the District follow FASB
Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, uniess those pronouncements conflict with
GASB pronouncements,
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June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}

C. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the General, Special
Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. The budgets are submitted to the County Office and are voted
upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the Special Revenue Fund. The legal level of
budgetary controf is established at fine item accounts within each Fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of
accounts referenced in N.JAC. 68:20-2A.2(m}1.  All budget amendments/transfers must be
approved by Board resolution. All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary
information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for
legally-authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and unexpended grant
appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The Capital Project Fund presents the
remaining project appropriations compared to current-year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of
the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only
and the Special Revenue Fund as noted beiow. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an
extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund-types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
refated revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.  Sufficient suppiemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports. At June 30, 2010, there
was a reconciling difference of $(2,088.00) between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis in the
General Fund and of $(125,774.67) in the Special Revenue Fund,

The following presents a reconciliation of the General Fund revenues and Special Revenue Fund
revenues and expenditures from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the Budgetary
Comparison Schedules - General and Special Revenue Funds to the GAAP basis of Accounting as
presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
All Governmental Fund Types. Note that the District does not report encumbrances outstanding at
year-end as expenditures in the General Fund since the General Fund budget follows modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition policy for the last state aid payment.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

C. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Cont'd):

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and
Expenditures
General Special Revenue
Fund Fund
SOURCES/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues” from
the Budgetary Comparison Schedules '$ 48,001,809.40 $ 1,407,437.20

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized
as expenditures, and the related revenue is

recognized. (125,774.67)

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements
in the current year, previously recognized for
budgetary purposes. 1,315,754.00

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year. (1,324,842.00)

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds. $ 47,992.721.40 $ 1,281,662.53

USES/OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total outflows’
from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 47 374,371.78 $ 1,407,437.20

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order
is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year
the supplies are received for financial reporting

purposes. (125,774.67)

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds. $ 47,374,371.78 $ 1,281,662.53
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}

D. Encumbrance Accounting:

Under Encumbrance Accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded o reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open
encumbrances in governmental funds other than the Special Revenue Fund are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities
but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, for which the District has received advances,
are reflected in the Balance Sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year-end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made
at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget
by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year-end.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity:

Interfund Transactions:

Transfers between Governmental and Business-type activities on the District-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without a requirement for repayment are reported as Interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
reported as other financing sourcesfuses in Governmental Funds and after non-operating
revenues/expenses in the Enterprise Fund. Repayment from funds responsible for particuiar
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
statements.

Inventories:
inventory purchases, other than those recorded in the Enterprise Fund, are recorded as

expenditures during the first year of purchase. Enterprise Fund inventories are valued at cost,
which approximates market, using the first-inffirst-out ("FIFO") method.
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 3C, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity (Cont’'d):

Capital Assets:

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its Capital Assets. Purchased or
constructed Capital Assets are reported at cost. Donated Capital Assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date received. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. The
District does not possess any infrastructure.

All reported Capital Assets except for Land and Construction in Progress are depreciated.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office and Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15
Software 3-5

Compensated Absences:

The District accounts for Compensated Absences {e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), Accounting for Compensated
Absences. A liability for Compensated Absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is ouiside the conirol of the employer and employee is accruad
as the employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The
District’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full
amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the
unused sick leave in accordance with the District's agreements with the various employee unions.

in the District-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater

than one year should be reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the
amount due in more thar one year.
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June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT’D)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity (Cont'd):

Compensated Absences (Cont'd):

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund-types is recorded within those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2010, no liability existed for
compensated absences in the Food Service Fund.

Deferred Revenue:

Deferred Revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied. Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2010, but
which were levied to finance fiscal year 2011 operations, have been recorded as Deferred Revenue.
Grants and entitlement received before the eligibility requirements are met are aiso recorded as
Deferred Revenue.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations:

All Payables, Accrued Liabilities, and Long-Term Obligations are reported on the District-wide
financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once
incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as
obligations of the funds. However, contractually-required pension confributions and compensated
absences that are paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only {o the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds are
recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Assets:

Net Assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net Assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets. Net Assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
gither through the enabling legisiation adopted by the District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, granfors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District's policy is
to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted Net Assets are available.
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June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity (Cont'd}:

Fund Balance Reserves:

The District reserves those portions of Fund Balance which are legally segregated for a specific
future use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are not
available for appropriation or expendiiure. Unreserved Fund Balance indicates that portion which is
available for appropriation in future periods. A Fund Balance Reserve has been established for
encumbrances, maintenance, capital and subsequent years expenditures.

Revenues — Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from Exchange Transactions, in which each pariy gives and receives essentially
equal value, is recorded on the actual accrual basis when the Exchange takes place. On the
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable
and become available. Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year
or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal year-end.

Nonexchange Transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in
return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entittements, and donations. On the accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue
from grants, entittements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which ail eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first
permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be used for
a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the
District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from Nonexchange
Transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the foliowing revenue sources are considered fo be both

measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes available as an advance, interest, and
tuition.
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June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity (Cont'd):

Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
Enterprise Fund. For the School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating
expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity of the
Enterprise Fund.

Allocation of indirect Expenses:

The District reports all Direct Expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct Expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect Expenses are allocated to functions
but are reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee benefits, including the
employer’'s share of Social Security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were
allocated based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the Indirect Expense column of the Statement of
Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributable to a specific function is considered an
Indirect Expense and is reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Interest on long-term
debt is considered an Indirect Expense and is reporied separately on the Statement of Activities.

Extracrdinary and Special ltems:

Extraordinary ltems are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in
cccurrence. Special [tems are transactions or events that are within the control of management and
are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions
occurred during the fiscal year.

Management Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepied accounting principies
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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June 30, 2010

2. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A Capital Reserve Account was established by the Hazlet Board of Education on September 20,
2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as Capital Qutlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal
years. The Capital Reserve Account is maintained in the General Fund and its activity is included in
the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the Capital Reserve Account are restricted to Capital Projects in the District's
approved Long Range Facilities Plan ("LRFP”). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a
District may increase the balance in the Capital Reserve by appropriating funds in the annua!
General Fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by Board Resolution at year-end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A District may also
appropriate additional amounts when the excess approval of the voters has been obtained either by
a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections
authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J. A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance in the
Account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted Capital Projects in its
approved LRFP,

The activity of the Capital Reserve for the July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2010 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2009 $1,220,752.13
Interest Earnings 3,219.10
Ending Balance, June 30, 2010 $1,223971.23

The June 30, 2010 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted Capital Projects at June 30,
2010 is $44,541,165.00.

3. TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL QUTLAY

During the year ending June 30, 2010, the District transferred $65,953.28 to the Capital Qutlay
accounts and $(343,658.28) out of Capital Outlay. Of the transfer, $41,385.28 was for equipment
from current expense and $24,568.00 was the result of prior-year encumbrances.
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June 30, 2010

4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {("FDIC”) or
New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. The New Jersey Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act requires alt banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to maintain
additional coliateral in the amount of 5% of the average public deposits and to deposit these
amounts with the Federal Reserve Bank for all deposits not covered by the FDIC.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000.00 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. At June
30, 2010, the book value of the Board’s deposits was $3,520,721.67 and the bank balances of the
Board's cash and deposits amounted to $3,509,928.01. Of the bank balances, $250,000.00 was
covered by FDIC and $3,270,721.67 was covered by the New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act. The Board's deposits which are displayed on the combined balance sheet as Cash
and Cash Equivalents are categorized as:

Bank
Depository Account Balance
insured S 250,000.00

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30,
2010, the Board’s bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized
by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations of the
United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States of America, Government Money
Market Mutual Funds, bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other cbligations
of the ilocal unit or units within which the school district is focated, Local Government investment
pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully-collaterized securities, if transacted in accordance
with the above statute.

As of June 30, 2010, the Board had no investments.
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June 30, 2010

4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {CONT’D)

investments (Cont'd)

interest Rate Risk

The Board does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

State law limits investments as noted above (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37). The District does not have an
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Investment and interest earnings in the Capital Projects Fund are assigned to the General Fund in
accordance with Board policy.

8. RECEIVABLES
Receivables at June 30, 2010 consisted of interfund, intergovernmental and other. All Receivables

are considered collectible in full. A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables
follows: -

Governmental District-Wide
Fund Financial Financial
Statements Statements

Federal Aid : $ 35472042 $ 35472042
State Aid : 770,462 .47 770,462 .47
Interfunds 584.584.67

1,709,767 .56 1,125,182.89
Less Allowance for Uncolfectibies 0.00 0.00
Total Receivables, Net $1,709.767.56 112 .89
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June 30, 2010

6. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2010 consist of the following:

Due to General Operating Fund from Special Revenue Fund
$ 104,662.05 representing a cash advance

Due to General Operating Fund from Capital Projects Fund
479,922.80 representing a cash advance

Due to General Operating Fund from Debt Service Fund
.62 representing a cash advance

Due to Enterprise Fund from General Operating Fund
1.715.37 representing interest due.

$ 586,300.84
Transfers

As of June 30, 2010, the District's operating transfers consisted of $276,475.69 from the General
Operating Fund to the Capital Projects Fund.

7. INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2010 consisted of the following:

Food 14 53
The value of Federal-donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the Single Audit
Act of 1996, as revised) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the

date of purchase and has been included as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial
statements.
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8. CAPITAL ASSETS

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

June 30, 2008

Capitat asset activity for the fisca! year ended June 30, 2010, was as foliows:

Governmental Activities:

Capitai Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Site Improvements
Building and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Totals at Historical Cost
Less Accumuiated Depreciation for:
Site Improvements
Building and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Government Activity Capital Assets, Net
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Equipment
Less Accumnulated Depreciation

Enterprise Fund Capital Assets, Net

Total

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
$  4,492635.00 $ 4,49263500
267,455.95 $ 267,455 95
4,760,090.95 267 455,95 4,492 635,00
3,133,71282 § 50,402.00 3,184,114.82
21,908,024.04 1,633 ,607.45 23,541,631.49
1,769,499.31 42 936.07 1,812,435 38
26,811,235.97 1,726,945 .52 28,5638,181.49
1,609,253.97 240,407 .41 1,849,661.38
11,069,673.14 621,713.41 11,691,386.55
942 822,06 09 728.66 1,042,350.72
13,621,549.17 961,849.48 14,583,398.65
13,ﬁ89,686.80 765,096.04 13,954,782.84
17,949, 777.75 765,096.04 2687 455,95 18,447 417.84
542 330.13 542,330.13
(328,391.37") {28,396.30) (356,787.87)
213,938.76 {28,396.30) 185,542.46
18,163,716.51  § 736,600.74 $ 26745595 § 18,632,860.30
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June 30, 2010

8. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONT'D)

The NJ State Department of Education has set the capitalization threshold used by school districts

in the State of New Jersey at $2,000.00.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Regular Instruction $ 752,166.29
Special Education 56,749.12
QOther Instruction 30,779.18
Student Services 45,206.93
School Administrative Services 24,046.24
General and Business Administrative Services 5771.10
Plant Operations and Maintenance 47.160.62

Total 961.849.48
9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS |

A. Long-Term Obligation Activity:

Changes in Long-Term Obligations for the year ended June 30, 2010, are as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2009 Additions Retired June 30, 2010 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated
Absences Payable $ 2,925746.07 $218,665.22 $441.331.12 $ 2,703,080.17 3% 125,663.05
Capital Leases 400,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00
Bonds Payable 7.265.000.00 205,000.00 7,060,000.00 220.000.00
10,5907 7 866522 $846331.12 $ 9,963 08017 $ 545,663.05

Compensated absences énd capital leases have been liquidated in the General Fund.
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June 30, 2010

9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D}:

A. Long-Term Obligation Activity (Cont'd):

Interest paid on debt issued by the District is exempt from federal income tax. Because of this,
bondholders are willing to accept a lower interest rate than they would taxable debt. The District
temporarily reinvesis the proceeds of such debt in higher-yielding taxable securities, especiaily
during construction projects. The Federal Tax Code refers to this as arbitrage.

Earnings in excess of the yield on the debt issue are rebated to the Federal Government based on
requirements in the Internal Revenue Code. Arbitrage rebate payable represents amounts due to
the Internal Revenue Service for interest earmned on unspent bond proceeds that exceeds fegally-
allowable returns.

Rebatable arbitrage liahilities related to the District debt are not recorded in governmental funds.
There is no recognition in the Balance Sheet or Income Statement until rebatable amounts are due
and payable to the Federal Government.

Government Activities

Issue Interest Dates of Balance
Dates Rates Maturity June 30, 2010
Bonds Payable 06/15/01 4.20-500% 02/01/11-30 $ 7.060,000.00
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT’D):

B. Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness.
Bonds issued by the Board are general obligation bonds.

Debt Service Requirements on serial bonds payable at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 220,000.00 $ 348,627.50 568,627.50
2012 230,000.00 339,387.50 569,387.50
2013 235,000.00 329,325.00 564,325.00
2014 250,000.00 318,750.00 568,750.00
2015 265,000.00 306,250.00 571,250.00
2018 275,000.00 293,000.00 568,000.00
2017 290,000.00 279,250.00 569,250.00
2018 300,006.00 264,750.00 564,750.00
2019 315,000.00 249,750.00 564,750.00
2020 330,000.00 234,000.00 564,000.00
2021 350,000.00 217.,600.00 567,500.00
2022 360,000.00 200,000.00 560,000.00
2023 380,000.00 182,000.00 562,000.00
2024 395,000.00 163,000.00 558,000.00
2025 425,600.00 143,250.00 568,250.00
2026 445 000.00 122,000.00 567,000.00
2027 480,000.00 99,750.00 559,750.00
2028 485,000.00 76,750.00 561,750.00
2029 510,000.00 52,500.00 562,500.00
2030 540,000.00 27,000.00 567,000.00

$.7,060,000.00 $.4,246,.840.00 $.11,306,840.00

C, Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

As of June 30, 2010, the District had authorized the issuance of not to exceed $7,200,000.00
Refunding Bonds.
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June 30, 2010

9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D):

D. Capital Leases Payable

On April 8, 2008, the District entered into a $1,000,000.00 capital lease with Bank of America to
finance synthetic turf at Raritan High School, and a District-wide phone system,

Minimum lease payments under the lease purchase agreements described above, along with the
present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2010, are:

Year Ended June 30, Amount
2011 $ 20769240
Less Amount Representing Interest 7,692.40
Present Value of Lease Payments $ 20000000

10. OPERATING LEASES

As of June 30, 2010, the District had not entered into any operating leases.

11._PENSION PLANS

Bescription of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees’ Retirement
System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by State statute
and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (*Division”). According to
the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the
State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly-available
financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for
the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These
reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton,
New Jersey, 08625,
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June 30, 2010

11. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (“TPAF”)

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established as of January, 1, 1955 under the
provisions of N.J.S5.A. 18A.66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to
certain gualified members. The TPAF is considered a cost-sharing muitiple-employer plan with a
special funding situation as, under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State
of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the System’s other related non-contributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified
by the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles
that are unclassified, professional, and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”)

The Public Employees' Retirement System was established as of January, 1, 19556 under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits {o certain
gualified members. The PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-emplover plan. Membership is mandatory
for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality,
school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a member of another
State-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions

The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A.
18A:68 for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for medical benefits
that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available at age 60
and are generally determined to be 1/60 of the final average salary for each year of service credit,
as defined. Final average salary equals the average salary for the final three years of service prior
to retirement (or highest three years’ compensation if other than the final three years). Members
may seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred
retirement after achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first
day of the month after the member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides
for specified medical benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of gualified service,
as defined, or under the disability provisions of the System.

Members always full vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit,

become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before
retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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11. PENSION PLANS (CONT’'D)

Significant Legislation

Legislation enacted during the year ended June 30, 1997 (Chapter 115, P.L. 1987) changed the
asset valuation method from market-related value to full-market value. This legislation aiso
contained a provision to reduce the employee contribution rate by ¥ of 1% o 4.5% for calendar
years 1998 and 1999, and to allow for a reduction in the employee’s rate after calendar year 1999,
providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also provided that the Districts’
normal contributions to the Fund may be reduced based on the revaluation of assets.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S A, 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of
1997 and N.J.S.A. 18.:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers.
Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation.
TPAF and PERS provide for employee contributions of 5.5% of employees’ annual compensation,
as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and
PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments,
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the
District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage Net
Year Funding Pension of APC Pension
June 30, Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2010 $ 341,540.00 100% $ 341,540.00
2009 285,913.00 100% 285,913.00
2008 253,981.00 80 203,184.80

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on Behalf of the District)

Annual Percentage Net
Year Funding Pension of APC Pension
June 30, Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2010 $ 1,490,938.00 100% $ 000
2009 1,433,445.00 100 0.00
2008 3,746,641.00 100 0.00



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

11. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D)

Contribution Requirements {cont'd)

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the State of New Jersey contributed $75,371.00 to the TPAF
for normal pension and $1,415,567.00 for post-retirement medical benefits on behalf of the District.
Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A: 86-66, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$1,698,484.58 during the year ended June 30, 2010 for the employer's share of social security
contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base salaries. This amount has been
included in the general-purpose financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and
account group statements and schedules as a revenues and expenditures in accordance with GASB
24,

Legislation enacted during 1991 provides early retirement incentives for certain members of TPAF
and PERS who met certain age and service requirements and who applied for retirement between
certain dates in the 1992 fiscal year. The early retirement incentives included: (a) an additional five
years of service credit for employees at least age 50 with a minimum of 25 years of service; (b) free
health benefits for employees at least 60 years old with at least 20 years of service: and (c) an
additional $500 per month for two years for employees at least age 60 with 10 but less than 20
years of service. The District will assume the increased cost for the early retirement as it affects
their district.

12. POST - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, ¢.384 and P.L. 1990, ¢.6 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (‘“TPAF”) and
the Public Employees’ Retirement System (‘PERS”), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical
benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on
a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement
medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension
plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired state employees
and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2009, there were 84,590 retirees eligible for
post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the
State in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed
from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c¢. 126, which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of
education or county coliege with 25 years of service. The State paid $116.9 million toward Chapter
126 benefits for 13,320 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2009.
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13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of Deferred Compensation Plans created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The Plans, which are administered by the entities listed
below, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred
under the Plans are not available to employees untit termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The Plan administrators are as foliows:

Equitable Valic
Met Life Lincoln invest.
Siracusa

14. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions,; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for
property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage
can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New
Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”.
Under this ptan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for
benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. The table below is a summary of the District contributions,
employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the
District’s expendable trust fund for the current and the previous two years.

District Employee Amount Ending

Fiscal Year Contributions Contributicns Reimbursed Balance
2009/10 $ 48,992.00 $ 62.,290.35 $ 106,335.44 $ 91,033.26
2008/09 0.00 54 022.09 32.044.66 103,838.63
2007/08 0.00 54,317.03 38,504.72 92,714 .57

15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grant Programs

The District participates in federally-assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District is potentially liabfe
for expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs.
Management is not aware of any matenal items of noncompliance which would result in the
disallowance of program expenditures.
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16. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund

Of the $3,216,483.60 General Fund fund balance in the fund financial statements at June 30, 2010,
$237,659.71 is reserved for encumbrances; $1,209,555.43 is reserved as excess surplus in
accordance with N.J.S A, 18A7TF-7; ($296,087.27 of the total reserve for excess surplus has been
appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the vyear ending June 30, 2011);
$1,223,971.23 has been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account; $899915.73 has been
appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2011 and
$(354,618.50) is unreserved and undesignated.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund fund balance at June 30, 2010 of $(0.62) is unreserved and undesignated.

17. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

in accordance with N.J.S A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance ~
Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (‘CEIFA"). New Jersey school districts are required to
reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The
excess fund balance at June 30, 2010 is $913,468.16.

18. SERVICE AGREEMENT - MOESC

The Monmouth-Ocean Educational Services Commission (‘MOESC") provides the following
services to the Board:

Grant Amount Expenditures Balance*
Non-Public Comp. Ed. $ 4,798.00 $ 1,919.00 $ 2879.00
Non-Public Transportation 6,894.00 6,894.00
Non-Public Exam/Class 17,.909.00 2,377.00 15,532.00
Non-Public Speech 7,174.00 2,690.00 4,484 .00
Non-Public Supplemental Inst. 6,371.00 2.389.00 3,882.00
Non-Public Nursing 1,158.00 383.50 77450

*  We have been advised that Monmouth-Ocean Educational Services Commission will be
responsible for returning unexpended balances to the state.
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19. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The District has a deficit fund balance of $(354,618.50) in the General Fund as of June 30, 2010 as
reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the
event a state school aid payment in not made untif the following school budget year, districts must
record the delayed one or more June state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in
the current school budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this
revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33
requires that recognition (revenue, expendifure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one
government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is
recording the June state aid payment(s) in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district can not
recognize the June state aid payments (on the GAAP financiai statements) until the year the Siate
records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the June state aid payments, the
General Fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the district is facing financiai difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44 2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that
is reported as a direct result from a delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal
year, is not considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective
action. The District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $(354,618.50) is less than the last state
aid payment

20. PRIOR-PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Prior-period adjustment — error in expensing certain costs that should have been capitalized in the
prior year.

Food Service Fund

As Restated

June 30, June 30,
2009 Adjustment 2009
Equipment $ 489,287 .95 $ 53,042.18 $ 542 33013
Net Assets 256,365.51 53,042 18 309,407.69

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On October 28, 2010, the School District issued refunding bonds in the amount of $6,930,000.00 to
refund all or a portion of the remaining outstanding callable schoo! bonds issued in the original
principal amount of $7,444 000.00, and dated June 15, 2001. The refunding produced a net
present value to the District of $767,283.00.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES



REVENUES

Local Sources:
Locat Tax Levy
Tuition From individusis
Transpartation Fees From Individuais
Transporiation Fees From Other LEAs
interesi Eamed an Capital Resérve Funds
Other Resticted Miscellaneous Revenues
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues

Totat Local Sources

State Sources:
Extraordinary Aig
Categorical Special Education Aid
Equalization Aid
Categerical Security Aid
Categorical Transpartation Ajd
Other State Aids
TPAF Post Retirement Medicat (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted)
TRAF Pension (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted}
TRAF Social Security (Reimbursad - Non-Budgeted)

Totaf Stale Sources

rederal Saurces:
ARRA ESF - Equalization Aid
ARRA GSF - Egualization Ald
Medicaid Reimbursement

Total Federal Saurces
Total Revenues

EXPENMTURES:
Current Expense:
Reqular Frograms - Instruction:
Preschod! - Salanes of Teachers
Hindergarien - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 9-12 - Salanes of Teachers
Regular Pregrams - Heme Instrsction:
Salaries of Teachers
Furchased Professional - Educationai Services
Requar Programs - Undistributed {nstruction:
Other Saaries for Instruction
Furchased Professional - Educational Services
Purchased Techhical Services
Cther Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Cbjscts

Total Reguiar Pragrams - Instruction

Special Education - Instruction:
tearning and/or Language Disabilities:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks

Total Learning andfor Language Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities:
Salarios of Teachers
Other Saiaries for nstruction
Genarai Supplies
Texthooks

Total Multipte Disabilities
Regsource Room/Resource Center,
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Suppliss
Textbooks
Total Resource RoomiRescurce Center
Preschoot Disabilities - Part-Time:
Salaries of Teachers
Oiher Salaries for Instruction
Total Preschool Disabilities - Part-Time

Tolal Special Education - Instruction

RAZLET SCHOOL BISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

variance
Criginal Budget Final Final Te
Budagst Transfors Sudget Agtual Aclual
$ 31,500,088.00 $ 31.600,058.00 $ 31,800,088.00
56.400.0G 55, 400.00
40,000.00 40,000.00 27.275.650 (12,724,501
20,000.00 20,000.08 (20,000.00}
50.00 50.00 321910 3 16210
25,000.00 25,000.00 8.650.00 (16,350.00}
140.000.00 140,000.00 d8 67321 (80,328 74}
31,828,108.00 . 31,825, 10800 2175427581 (70,832 194
125,000.00 125,000.60 194,929.00 $9,929.00
1,790,687 .00 1,790,657 .06 1,790,567 .00
10,637,893.00 § (2,230,648.00) 8,407,374 00 8,407,374.00
249,003.00 (87,151.00) 1,852 00 161.852.00
776,682.00 {271,842 00} 504,850 00 504,850 00
11,066.00 11,066.00
1,418,567.00 1,415 567 .00
7RIV 0D 78,371.00
1,696 484 58 1,698,484 58
13 579,145.00 12,589,512.00} 10,889,633 00 14 260,050 68 3 370,417 58
1.858.266.00 1,868,268.00 1,858,268.00
71.936.00 71.,836.00 71,436.00
12,896.00 i2,896.00 57,278.01 44 383.01
12 896.00 1,930,204.00 1,843,100.00 1,987,483 01 44 383.01
4% 417.149.00 (659,308.00) 44 757.841.00 48,001,809 40 3243 968.40
120,723.00 217 905.20 336,628.20 303,358.70 35,268.50
558,317.00 37661016 932,827.16 §32,927.15
5,449.450.00 (137,158.88) 5,312.281.04 5.273,290.12 38,000.92
4,054,154.00 (286,848.28) 3,767,305.72 3,763,271.58 4.034.14
4,637,148.00 6733875 4.704,487.75 4,878,267 85 28,2169.80
35,000.00 27,999.84 62,999.84 62,959 84
12,000.00 3,500.00 15,500.00 14,642.78 857.24
126,244.00 82,850.61) 43,893 .49 43,683 49
1.000.00 1,600 60 1,000,00
183,262.00 153.262.00 956,608.81 57 68319
101,630.00 (1,000.00) 100,830 00 92085673 4834027
741,897.00 325.341.38 1.037,238 38 875,976 65 161,261.83
26,210.00 92,897.80 118,107 80 111,473 03 6624.77
31.987.00 477500 3677200 2755008 _ 942191
16, 018,333.00 608,810.37 18.6256,143.37 18,276,985 70 348.187.67
556,746.00 146,079.30 701,825.30 T01,82530
191,282.00 156.858.82 270,120.82 259,809.60 10.211.18
8.400.00 £,400.00 5,243 02 3.156.88
1.750.00 1,750.00 27276 1,477.24
578 158.00 303,938.12 982 086.12 G67,260.74 14.845.38
183,722.00 (8, 777.26) 1B6,944.74 186,943.99 078
31,372.00 {31,351.84) 20.18 20.16
7.360.00 7,380.00 3,009.89 4,350.11
500.00 500.00 500.00
237,954.00 {38.128,10) 194,824,90 169,974.04 4 B50 BB
1,802,830.00 (362,096.88) 1.440,734.14 1,440,734, 14
£5.,865.00 (47 184.20) 41,460.80 40,803.43 577.32
5,850.00 5,541.43 12,791.43 10,185.45 2,801.98
3,800.00 3,800.00 179.08 3,620.94
1,802,1459.00 (403 33B.G3) 1,498 BOG 37 1,452,006.13 6,800 24
52,585.00 52,596.00 52,695.00
29,803 83 2990363 29,905.83
82,498,563 82,498 .63 52, 496.63
2,813,287 00 (88,030.98} 2 758,226.02 2,731,729.54 26.4596.48

See Management's Discussion and Analysis seclion of this repon for explanation of significant budget variances, originai and final



EXPENDITURES (confinued):
Basic BkiHs/Remedial - Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies

Total Basic SkillsiRemedial - Instruction

Bilingual Education - Insiructon:
Salaries of Teachers

“Totai Bilinguat Education - Instruction

School Sponsored CorExtra-Curricular Activitias - Insfruction:
Sataries
Supphes and Materiafs
Uther Objects

Total School Sponsorad Co/Extre-Curricutar Activities - Instruction

School Sponsored Athletics - instruction:
Safaries
Purchased Services
Suppfies and Materials
Other Objects
Transfers To Cover Daficit (Agency Funds)

Total School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Total - Instruction

Undisl, Expend. - Instruction;
Tuifion Te Other LEAg Within the State - Special
Tuition To County Vot School Dist. - Regular
Tuition To County Vor. Schoul Dist. - Special
Tuition To Private Schocls for the Disabled Within Siate

Tetal Undist, Expend. - Instruction

Undist, Expend. - Attendance and Social Work Services:
Salaries
Supplies and Materials

Total Undist, Expand. - Altendance and Social Work Services

Undist, Expend. - Health Services:
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Sarvices
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Tolal Undist, Expend. - Healii: Services

Undist Expend. - Speech, OT, PT 8 Related Swve
Salaries
Purchased Professionzl - Bducational Services
Supplies and Matenals

Total Undis{. Expend. - Spgech, OT, PT & Relaled Svg,

Lindist, £xpend. - Other Support Serv. Students - Extra Serv.:
Galaries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Undist. Expend. - Other Support Serv. Siudents - Extra Serv,

Undist. Expend. - Guidance:
Sataries of Other Professionat Staff
Salaries of Secretanial and Clarical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Gther Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cther Purchased Sesvices
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Tofal Undist, Expend. - Cuidance

Exhibit ©-1

HAZLET SCHQOL DISTRICT Page 2 of 5
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
Fiscat year ended June 30, 2010
Yarlance
Criginal Budnet Final Final To
Budgel Transfers Budget Actual Actual
586,560.00 {186,187.80} 400,372.20 400,372.20
1,590.00 1.500.00 500.08 999 92
5BB,060.00 (186,187 .80) 401,872.20 400,872.28 99982
104 948 00 {37.045.00} 67,904.0C 87,5064.00
104,848.00 (37,045.00) 67,904.00 E7 904.00
T57,308.00 38,833,860 197,141.00 187,204,285 §,437.25
24.525.00 24,525.00 17.895.24 6,629 76
17,80%.00 3.938.00 21,544.00 14,513.28 03072
155,442.00 43,76B.50 243.210.50 218812 77 23,507 74
452 7G4.00 108.00 452,872.00 425 93330 26,938.70
1,275.00 1.275.00 9%5.24 36976
83,328.00 1,080.00 94,409.00 83,560.86 10.848.14
56,187.00 {4,760.00) 51,427.00 35,346.20 16,080,850
55,855.00 (27,927 20} 27,828.00 27,928.07
£58.410.00 (31,498.00} 627,911.00 97368360 54 22740
20,381, 451.00 342 816.09 20,724,287 09 20,270,757 88 453,509.20
25,288.00 26,298.00 25.298.00
225,150.00 17,250.00 242,400.00 234.350.00 §,050.00
104,00C.00 10,600.00 114,500.00 108,260.00 6,260.00
1,426 868,00 (304,264 871 3.122,803.03 1,068,569.90 54,033.13
1.756,018.00 {251, 216.97) 1,504 807.03 1,436,487 90 68 333,13
75,018.00 581.84 76,599.84 76.599.54
£80.00 S80.00 £36.00 43 90
78,598.00 581.84 17 1Te 84 77,137.84 42.00
£17,543.00 12,148.00 £29,602 00 062968184 0.18,
10,256.00 ©30.00 10,685.00 8.285.00 2,580.00
120.00 120.00 1116 108.84
14,385.00 20.00 14,415.00 13,004.67 +.410.33
4,580.00 4,580.00 2,718.51 1,870.49
546,903.00 12,798.00 859.702.00 653,722 18 5.579.82
287,420.00 (18.605.00) 36881500 350,563 68 9,251,356
54,249.00 54,249.00 44,544 06 G, 705.00
5,000 60 £.000.00 562197 78.03
447.669,00 {18 605.00) 429,064.00 410,029.82 18.034.38
246,009.00 8¢003.47 335,012.47 332, 7G7.G5 2,306.42
86.208.00 23,800.00 120,008.00 119,973.33 34.67
7,352 00 7,352.00 5,495 57 1,358.48
349 568.00 112,803.47 o BB2 37247 458 675.90 3,696 57
587 834.00 {2.934.00} 584,900,680 584,900.0¢
7571100 58B.84 76,209.84 78,299.84
17,450.00 17,460.00 2.847.83 14,6027
19,300.00 5,065.00 24,365.00 24,197.34 187 66
12600 125.00 125.00
37.856.00 (35.00% 37.821.00 33,506.26 4,314 74
15,885 00 (270.00} 15.595.00 10,289.95 5,505,085
754.141.00 2,414.84 T46,555.84 732,041.22 24,514.62
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See Management's Discussion and Anakysls section of this report for axplanation of significant budgel variances, oniginal and final,



EXPENIITURES (conlinued):

Undist, Expend. - Child Study Teams:
Salaries of Other Professienal Staff
Salaries of Secretariai and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Miscellansous Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objgcts

Total Undist. Expend. - Child Study Teams

Undist, Expend. - improvement of Insiructional Services:
Salarfes of Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salanes of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services
Supglies and Materials
Other Obiects

Total Undist, Expand. - !mprovenent of instructional Services

tndist. Expend. - Educational Media/School Library:
Salarles
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Tetal Undist. Expend. - Educational Media/School Library

Undist. Expend. - Instructional Staff Training Services:
Cther Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Ciher Objects

Total Undist. Expend. - Instructionat Siaff Training Services

Undist, Expend. - Support Services - Genaral Administration:
Salaries
Salaries of Altornays
Legal Services
Audlt Foas
Other Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Technical Services
Communications/Telephone
Misc Purchased Services
Gernerat Supplies
Miscellaneous bxpendilures
BOFE Membership Dues and Fees

Total Undist. Expond. - Support Services - Seneral Administration

Undist. Expend. - Support Services - Schooj Adminisiration:
Salariss of Principale/Assistant Principals/Prog Dir
Sataries of Other Professionat Staff
Salaries of Secretaral and Clerical Assisiants
Cther Saaries
Cther Purchased Sarvices
Suppiies and Materals
CHher Cliscls

Total Urdist. Expend. - Support Services - Scheol Administration

tndist. Expend. Support Services - Central Services:
Salaries
Puschased Tachnical Services
Supplies and Materials
Intarest on Lease Purchase Agreemenis
Mizcellaneous Expendillires

Totar Undist, Expend. Support Sarvices - Cenfral Services

Undist. Expend. Support Services - Admin. Info. Tech. Services:

Salarles

Totat Undisl. Expend, Support Sarvices - Admin. infe, Tech, Services

Exhibit C-1

HAZLET SCHOOL INSTRICT Page 3 of &
BUDGETARY COMPARIBON SCHERULE
GENERAL FUND
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
WVarance
Originat Budgel Finak Final Ta
Buddast Transfers Actual
703593900 18,100.87 72179987 721,700.87
128,620.00 1,716.08 130,236.09 126.880.88 3,366.21
80,426.00 20,420.00 54,114.25 36,305.75
3,000.80 3,000.00 1,731.74 126426
12,850.00 13,860.00 13,842.58 744
8.550.00 {185.00) 8,365.00 581582 549.18
846 039.00 19,831.96 965,670,968 924 17412 41,496 B4
334,164.00 12, 166.0¢ 366,330.G0 366,330.00
151.472 00 2.348.76 1683,821.76 150,822.76 2,99%.00
30,078.00 480.92 30,5569.92 30,555 .92
2,000.06 2.000.00 210.42 1.08%.58
2,150.00 215000 1.046.34 1,103.56
24,800.00 738.00 25.538.00 16,213,857 932443
544 665,00 345,734,68 580,399,688 565,663 01 14, 516.67
138,846.00 $,755.50 148,801.50 148,601.50
10.000.80 10,000.80 9,419.28 580,76
4500 45,00 4500
37,400.00 37.400.60 34,726 36 267364
30069 0000 300.00
186,581.0C 9,755.60 196,346,560 192,747 11 3,599.28
10,000.00 10,000.00 7.088.00 2,932.00
3,875.00 3.875.00 864,83 301017
5700000 {10,006.0G) 47 00000 1667569 3132431
70.875.00 (10.000.00) 6087500 23608.52 37,266.48
561,880.00 594.45 562,483,456 561,738,671 T44.84
21,000.00 21,000.00 21,600.00
40,000.00 {8,744, 70} 50,255.30 38.814.25 11,441.05
36,500.00 {13,000.00) 32,500.00 32,500.00
18,000.00 76,190.00 G4,190.00 64 547 98 29.642.02
39.700.00 (2,708 BTY 25,991.49 29.691.49
§12,230.00 (14,975.424 97,284 58 87 44421 9.81¢.37
138,700.00 7.602.01 146,202.01 138,051.517 §,160.50
8,750.00 8,750.00 7,803.56 946,44
£5.320.00 {6,078,96) 59,241.04 48,174.83 11,088,214
28,000.00 28 000.00 24 41300 3.887.00
,068,089,00 61,778.87 1,129,B67 87 1,054,479.44 75.368.43
1.458,577.00 (28,223.36) 1,430.352.64 1.430,352.96 0.68
242.678.00 {1,32512) 244, bh2.88 241,552.80 o.oe
468,746.00 11,578.02 480,324.02 480,324.02
13,703.00 13,703.00 13,195.50 507.50
6,120.00 6,120.00 4,679.78 1,440.22
16,350.00 32.0%) 16.318.00 14.307.20 2,010,680
15,380.00 10, 39000 12,654.26 2,735 71
2.221.784.00 (18,002 46} 2,203 761.64 2,187.066.65 5,694 98
502,326.00 14,584 52 518,810 52 516,910 52
18,508.00 19.500.00 18,336.60 116400
18,800 .00 {3.509.50} 15.490.50 T.748.01 T.744 4%
16,384 .00 Q.80 15 384,80 156,384 B0
14,350.00 14,350.00 8,375.48 4,974.52
570,560.00 11,078,862 £81,638.82 467 752 81 13,883.01
201.857.00 260256 211,259.56 219,250.58
201.657.00 9,602.56 211,250.56 21125868
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See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanatien of significant budget variances, original and final.



Extibit G
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT Page 4 of 5

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Criginal Budget Finai Final To
Budget Transfars Budget At Actyal

EXPENDITURES {continued):
Undist. Expend. - Required Maintenance for School Facilitios:

Sslaries 334,399.00 {1,667 63} 32673137 324,653,047 2,672,30

Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 361,350.00 157,782.54 508,142.54 485,649,339 13,483.16

Generat Supplies 111,200.00 {10,000.00) 104,200.00 82,2089 18,990.09

Other Objects 3,800.00 380000 3,546.88 25312
Tolal Undist. Expend. - Required Maintenancs for School Facifities 800,748.00 14092494 940,873.91 906,065,286 e 34 BOBBG
Undist, Expend. - Other Operation and Maintenance of Plant Svees.:

Balaries 1,857,571.00 (54,505.38) 1,803,065.64 1,766,241.589 36,824,113

Purchased Profassional and Technical Services 196,350.00 5,258,489 201,606.49 199,884 49 1,722.00

Cieaning, Repair, & Maintenance Services 189,842,060 (17.127.00 172,722.00 120,616.56 52,105.44

Rental of Land and Bidg. Oth. Than Lease Pur Agrmnt. 2,500.00 {2 500.00)

Cther Purchased Property Services 142,300.00 {5,000.00% 137,300.00 118,773.25% 17,526.75

insurance +10,000.00 {25,936.00) 84,064.00 B4,063.50 0.50

Misc. Purchased Services 1,900.00 1,800.00 1,165.08 734.91

General Supplies 98,225.80 721173 105,438.73 93,293.6% 12,143.04

Energy (Electriciy) 875,000.80 {5,000.00} 570,000.00 47322361 96,776.39

Other Cbiects §,625.00 5,828.00 4,580.00 1,045.00

Energy (Naturat Gas) 485000.00 (30,665,885} 464,334.15 312,704.12 151,630.03
Total Undist. Expend. - Other Operation and Maintenance of Plant Svees. 3,674,320.00 {128,265.89) 3,546 054.01 3,175,545.82 370,508.18
Undist. Expend. - Care & Upkeep of Grounds:

Sataries 120,618.00 120,618.00 11931832 1,302.68

Cleaning, Repair, & Mainlenance Services 128,800.00 21,323.52 150,123.82 137,927.24 12,196.28

General Supplies 78,000.00 (8,000.00) 73,000.00 56629.84 13,370.16
Total Care & Upkeap of Grounds: 32741808 13.323.52 340,741.52 13 B72.40 26,869.12
Ungist. Expend. - Securily;

Salaries 52,000.00 17.518.11 6951811 64,105,982 5,412.1¢

Cleaning, Repair, & Maintenance Services 82 300.00 52,300.00 B82.217.00 B83.00
Tuted Security 134,300.60 47,5181 16181811 146,322 92 548519
Taotal Undist. Expend. - Cper. & Maint. of Plant 4,936,787.00 42.700.55 4,878 487,55 4,541,808.33 43768116
Undist. Expend. - Studsn! Transporiation Services:

Baleries of Nan-Instructionat Aldes 6,335.00 16.476.91 22,811.61 2194040 B871.54

Sataries for Pupil Transp. (Bef. Home & School} - Regiar 401200 222822 35,2406.22 36,240,722

Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services 4,200.00 253.35 4,453.36 4,453.35

Coniracted Services (Bel. Home & School - Venders 1,158,163.00 (128,185 40} 1,020,957.50 862,060.86 167,866.74

Contracted Services (Other Than Bet. Home & Schoof) - Vendors 151,237.00 3,840.00 155,177.08 104,569.27 50,507.73

Contracted Services (Special Ed. Students) - Vendors 944,033,000 {60,306.20) B883,726.80 711,496.40 172,230.40

Contracted Services {Regular Studenis) - ESCs & CTSAs 343,910.00 343, 910.00 303,178.83 40,731.37

Contracted Services (Special £d, Students) - E5Cs & CTSAs 126,298.00 (50,000.00} 76,296.00 11,822.72 64,473.28

Contracted Services - Aid in Lisu Payments - NonPub Sch 58 000.00 58,000.00 52,780,040 5,210.80

aliscellaneous Purchased Services - Transporiation 415.00 415.00 415.00

General Supplies 4,500.00 1,500,000 236.00 1,264.00

Other Objects 506.00 500.00 70.00 430.00
Total Undist. Expend. - Studant Transportation Services 2,828.591.00 (215,603,112} 2,612,987.88 2,108,957 85 50403003
Unalipcated Benefits - Empioyea Benefits:

Group Insurance 7.200.00 7.200.00 FATT.24 22.76

Social Security Contributions 452,720.00 23,186 .67 47591667 475 6656.67 250.00

Other Retirement Contributions - Regular 350,000.00 360,000.00 344 679.53 530047

Unemploymert Compensation 10,000,00 38,892.00 48,892.00 48,992.00

Workmen's Compensation 400,360.00 (48,344.00) 351,956.00 337,464.37 14,491.683

Health Benefits ©,172,341.00 {479,247.77) 5693.093 23 5,542,821.97 150,571.26

Tultion Relmbursemant £50,000.00 (5,816.95) 50,183.05 56,183.08

Other Employee Banefits 83,016.00 8301800 B3.015.23 .77
Telat Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits 7,536,577.00 {475.220.06} 7,080,358 95 885 700.06 170,656.89
TPAF Post Refirament Medica! {Gn-Dehalf - Non-Budgeted) 1,415,567.00 1,418,567 00}
TPAF Pension {On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) 76,371.00 (75,371.00)
TPAF Social Security (Reimbursed - Non-Budgeted) 1,698 484.58 (1,698,484 58)
Total On-Behalf Confributions 3,189,422 .88 {3,189, 427 58}
Tolal Personal Services - Employee Benefits 7,838,877.00 {475,220.05) 7.080,356.95 10,079,122 64 (3,018,765.69)
Total Undistributed Expendilures 25,142 093,00 (668, T68.51) 24472324 49 26,234 932,66 {1,762,808.17)
Totai Expenditures - Current Expense 45,523 544 00 (328,952 42 4%,196,591.58 46,805 690.55 (1,309,008 97
CAPITAL QUTLAY
lnterest Deposit To Capitat Reserve 50.00 50.00 50.60
Total Capital Reserva 60.00 55.00 50.80
Equipment:

Undistributed Expenditures:

Required Maintenance For School Facilities 44 352,00 44,352.00 44,352 00
Custodiat Services 24.575.00 13,741.28 3831828 23816.28 14,500.00

Totat Equipment 24 57500 58,083.28 8256828 68, 168.28 +4,500.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:

Censtruction Services 960,000.00 {477,705.00} 482,205.00 480,843.76 1,451.24

Lease Purchase Agresments - Principal 200,600.00 200,000.00 200 000,00
Totat Facikities Acquisition and Construction Services 960,600.00 (277, 705.00) B82 296.00 680 84378 1,451.24
Total Capital Qutlay 954,625.00 (21961172} 785013.28 749.012.04 16,001.24

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budge! variances, originaf and final.



Spacial Schoals:
Sumrner School - Instruction:
Salarles of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Geaneral Suppliss

Total Summer School - Instruction

Summer School - Support Services:
Satarles

Tolal Summer School - Support Services
Yotai Summer School

Total Special Schoals

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Overf{Under;
Expenditures

Other Financing Sourcas/{Uses}:
Facilities Gramd - Transfer To Special Revenue

Totat Other Financing Sources/{Uses)
Met Change i Fund Batances

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, Jung 30

Recapilulation:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Capifal Reserve
£xcess Surplus
Excess Surpius - Designated For Subsequen Years' Expenditures
Unrestricted Fund Balance:
Designated for Subsegquent Years Expenditures
Undesignated

Reconciliation To Governmental Funds Statements (GAAPY
t.ast State Aid Payment Not Recognized on GAAFP Basis

Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP)

HAZLET SCHOQL ISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Yariance
Original Budget Final Final To
Budget T Busioet Agtuat
73,000.80 1,338.60 74,338.60 74,338.60
30.000.00 8,325.38 38,326.38 38,325.38
7.980.00 (4,802.79) 307781 30772
110,980.00 476119 115.741.19 115.741.19
4,000.00 {72.00; 3 828.00 3,925.00
4,000.00 (72.00) 3,828.00 3,928.00
114.980.00 4 588,19 116.669.1¢ 114,669,198
114.980.00 4,688.18 1£9865.1¢ 118,869,18
46,623,149.00 (641,874 95) 46,081,274.05 47 374,371.78 {1,293 097.73
(1,206,000 00} {117 433.08) {1.323.433 05} E27,437.62 1.950,870.67
{285 565.00) {285,565.00) (275,475 89y 8,089 31
(285,565.00) 285 565 00) (276,475 69} 9,089 31
1,208,000.00) {402 998.05) 11,608.998.05) 35085193 1,959,959.98
4,190,363 67 4,190,363 67 4,190,363.67
$ 2884 38367 $ (402998 08} § 258138562 $ 454132560 3 195080008
$ 28765971
1,243.471.23
913,488.18
796 087.27
89991573
970,223 50
4,541,325.80
{1,324.842.00)
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§ 3721648360

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this repart for explanation of significant budget variances, originai and final



Exhibit C-1b (1
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Budget Final Final To
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES:
Federal Sources:
A.R.R.A. ESF - Equalization Aid $ 185826800 $ 185826800 $ 1,858288.00
Total Federal Sources 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00
Total Revenues 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00
EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:
Unallocated Benefits - Empioyee Benefits:
Heaith Benefits 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00
Total Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00
Totai Expenditures - Current Expense 1,858,268.00 1,8568,268.00 1,858,268.00
Total Expenditures 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00 1,858,268.00
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balances, July 1
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 000 S 0.00 $ 000 $ 0.00 § 0.00

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this rgg'ort for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final.



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit C-1b (2

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Budget Final Final To
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual

REVENUES:
Federal Sources:

A.R.R.A. GSF - Equalization Aid $ 71,836.00 71,836.00 71,936.00
Total Federat Sources 71,836.00 71,836.00 71,936.00
Total Revenues 71,836.00 71,938.00 71,836.00
EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:;

Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits:

Health Benefits 71,836.00 71,836.00 71,936.00

Total Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits 71,936.00 71,836.00 71,836.00
Totai Undistributed Expenditures 71,936.00 71,936.00 71,936.00
Total Expenditures - Current Expense 71,938.00 71,936.00 71,936.00
Total Expenditures 71,936.00 71,036.00 71,636.00
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues

Over/(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balances, July 1
Fund Balances, June 30 $000 § 0.00 0.00 0.00 $ 000

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of g report for explanation of significant budget variances,

original and final,



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
L.ocal Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources

Tolal Revenues

Expenditures:
{nstruction:
Salaries of Teachers
Purchased Professional Education
Services

Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbocks

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional Education
Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services
Facilittes Acquisition and Construction Services:
Building
Instructional Equipment
Noninstructional Equipment
Total Faciiities Acguisition and Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Total Cutflows

Excess/{Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Exhibit C-2

Variance
Final Finai To
Budget Actual Actual
$ 41,973.14 41,850.77 $ (122.37)
45 281.00 44 304.00 (977.00)
1,321,282.43 1,321,282 43
1,408,536 57 1,407,437.20 {1,099.37)
13%,918.00 138,9186.00
45,804.00 45 804.00
540,390.00 540,390.00
257,098.69 257,098.69
977.00 977 .00
084 .185.69 983,208.69 977.00
27,450.00 27.450.00
285,501.17 285,501.17
295.00 295.00
31,813.69 31,781.32 122 37
345 159.88 345,037.49 122,37
48.018.23 48 018.23
19,121.79 19,121.79
12,051.00 12,051.00
79,191.02 7¢.191.02
1,408, 536.57 1,407,437.20 1,099.37
1,408 536,57 1,407,437 20 1,008 37
3 0.00 00C § 0.00
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Exhibit C-3
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET-TO-GAAP RECONCILIATION

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and
Expenditures
General Special Revenue
Fund Fund
SOQURCES/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues” from
the Budgetary Comparison Schedules $ 48,001,800.40 $ 1,407,437.20

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized
as expenditures, and the related revenue is
recognized. (125,774.67)

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements
in the current year, previously recognized for
budgetary purposes. 1,315,754.00

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year. (1,324,842.00)

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds. $ 47,992,721.40 $ 1,281,662.53

USES/OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total outflows”
from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 4737437178 $ 1,407,437.20

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order
is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year
the supplies are received for financial reporting
purposes. (125,774.67)

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds, $ 47,374 371.78 $ 1,281,682.53
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMAT!ION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
{other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and equipment purchases other than those financed by proprietary funds.



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES

For the Year ended June 30, 2010

Expenditures To Date

Revised Prior Current  Urnexpended
Project Title/lssue Date Appropriations Years Year Balance
Sycamore Drive Elementary Schook:
Renovations - Early Childhood and
Kindergarten Classrooms $ 39857014 % 139,139.19  $ 259,430.95
Sycamore Drive Elementary School;
Renovations - Bathroom 200,624.15 128,318.76 72,307.39
Raritan High School:
Window Replacement 194,501.43 194 .601.43
Raritan High Schock:
Science Room Equipment & Finishes 107,702.17 107,702.17
Sycamore Drive Elementary School:
Partial Roof Replacement 130,541.13 130,541.13
Sycamore Drive Elementary School:
Renovations - Kitchen 114,821.67 114,821.67
$ 1,146,76069 $ 26745595 $ 879,304.74 $ 0.00
Unexpended Balance $ 0.00
Fund Balance (B-2) $ 0.00
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Exhibit F-2

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGETARY BASIS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
State Sources - SCC Grant
Transfer From Capital Qutlay

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Sources:
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/{Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance - July 1, As Restated (See Note 20)

Fund Balance - June 30

80

$ 479,922.00
276,475.69

756,397.69

42,200.00
837,104.74

879,304.74

(122,907.05)

122,907.05

$ 0.00




HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRCJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

SYCAMORE DRIVE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL RENOVATIONS -
EARLY CHILDHOOD AND KINDERGARTEN CLASSRCOMS

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2010

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State Sources - SCC Grant
Transfer from Capial Cutlay

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Sources:
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency} of Revenues
Over/{Under) Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date/Letter of Nefification
Bond Authorization {Referendum) Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Criginat Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Compietion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Exhibit F-2a

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost
$ 159,428.00 $ 15942800 § 159428.00
$ 246,502.00 {7,359.86) 239,142 .14 239 142 14
246,502.00 152,068.14 398,570.14 308,570.14
15,000.00 18,100.00 31,100.00 31,100.00
124,139.19 243,330.95 367,470.14 36747014
139,139.19 259.430.95 398,570.14 298,570.14
$ 107,362.81 $ (107.362.81) 3 00 3 0.00

#2105-100-09-1003

03/20/C9
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
$ 410,836.00
Not Appiicable
398,570.14

Not Applicable
100.00
£9/01/09
Not Applicable
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

SYCAMORE DRIVE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL -
BATHROOM RENOVATIONS

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit F-2b

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:

State Sources - SCC Grant $ 80,250.00 $ 8025000 $ 8025000

Transfer from Capital Cutlay 3 143,861.00 (23,486.85) 120,374.15 120,374 15
Total Revenues 143,861.00 56,763.15 200,624 15 200,624.15
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources:

Construction Services 128,316.76 72,307.39 200,8624.15 200,624 .15
Total Expenditures 128,316.76 72,307.39 200,624.15 20062415
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues

Over/(Under) Expenditures $ 1554424 § (1554424) § 000 & 0.00
Additional Project Information:

Project Number #2105-100-09-1004

Grant Date/Letter of Notification 03720109

Bond Authorization (Referendum) Date Not Applicable

Bonds Authorized Not Applicable

Bonds issued Not Applicable

Criginal Authorized Cost $ 239,768.00

Additional Authorized Cost Not Applicable

Revised Authorized Cost 200,624.15

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost Not Applicable

Percentage Completion 100.00

Original Target Completion Date 09/01/09

Revised Target Completion Date Not Applicable
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Exhibit F-2c
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

RARITAN HiIGH SCHOOL -
WINDOW REPLACEMENT

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2010

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:

State Sources - SCC Grant $ 7780100 $ 7780100 $ 77,801.00

Transfer from Capital Qutlay 116,700.43 116,700.43 116,700.43
Total Revenues 194,501.43 194,501.43 194 501.43
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources:

Construction Services 194,501.43 194,501.43 194,501 .43
Total Expenditures 194,501.43 194,501.43 194,501.43
Excess/{Deficiency) of Revenues

Over/{Under) Expenditures $ 000 % 000 % 000 8 0.00

Additional Project Information:

Project Number #2105-050-09-1001
Grant Date/Letter of Notification 2126/09

Bond Authorization (Referendum) Date Not Applicable
Bonds Authorized Not Applicable
Bonds Issued Not Applicable
Original Authorized Cost $ 202,125.00
Additional Authorized Cost Not Applicable
Revised Authorized Cost 194,501.43

Fercentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost Not Applicable
Percentage Completion 100.00
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Complefion Date Not Applicable
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HAZLET SCHOCL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

RARITAN HIGH SCHOOL -

SCIENCE ROOM EQUIPMENT & NEW FINISHES

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit F-2d

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:

State Sources - SCC Grant $ 4308100 & 4308100 $ 4308100

Transfer from Capital Outlay 64,621.17 64,621.17 64,621.17
Total Revenues 107,702.17 107,702.17 107,702.17
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources:

Construction Services 107,702.17 107,702.17 107,702.17
Total Expenditures 107,702 47 107,702.17 107,702.17
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues

Over/(Under) Expenditures $ 0.00 § 000 $ 000 % 0.00
Additional Preoject Information:

Project Number #2105-050-09-1002

Grant Date/l_etter of Notification 02/26/09

Bond Authorization (Referendum) Date Not Applicable

Bonds Authorized Not Applicable

Bonds Issued Not Applicable

Original Authorized Cost $ 184 512.00

Additional Authorized Cost Not Applicable

Revised Authorized Cost 107,702 .17

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost Not Applicable

Percentage Completion 100.00

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date Not Applicable
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

SYCAMORE DRIVE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL -
PARTIAL ROOF REPLACEMENT

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit F-2e

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Pericds Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State Sources - SCC Grant $ 5221600 § 5221600 § 52216.00
Transfer from Capital Outlay 78,325.13 78,325.13 78,325.13
Total Revenues 130,541.13 130,541.13 130,541.13
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources:
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 13,500.00 13,500.00 13,500.00
Construction Services 117,041.13 117.041.13 117,041.13
Total Expenditures 130,541.13 130,541.13 130,541.13
Excess/({Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures 3 000 § 000 % 000 3% 0.00
Additional Project information:
Project Number #2105-050-09-1005
Grant Date/l.etter of Nofification 02/26/09
Bond Authorization (Referendum) Date Not Applicable
Bonds Authorized Not Applicable
Bonds Issued Not Applicable
Original Authorized Cost $ 184,512.00
Additional Authorized Cost Not Applicable
Revised Authorized Cost 130,541.13
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost Not Applicable
Percentage Completion 100.00
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date Not Applicable
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

SYCAMORE DRIVE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL -

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2010

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State Sources - SCC Grant
Transfer from Capital Qutlay

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Sources:
Purchased Professional and Technical
Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date/Letter of Notification
Bond Authorization {Referendum) Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additionat Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

KITCHEN RENOVATIONS

Exhibit F-2f

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost
$ 67,146.00 $ 67,1456.00 $ 67,146.00
47 675.67 47 87567 47 675.67
114,821.67 114, 821,67 114 821.67
12,600.00 12,800.00 12,600.00
102,221.67 102,221.67 155,263.85
114,821.67 114,821.67 167,863.85
3 .00 % 0.00 3 0.00 3 0.00

#2105-100-09-1008
8/14/09
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
$ 199,707.00
Not Applicable
167,863.85

Not Applicable
68.40

Not Appiicable
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PROPRIETARY FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the District's Board is
that the costs of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

FOOD SERVICE FUND

This Fund provides for the operation of food services within the School District.

This section has already been included in Statements B-4, B-5, and B-6.



FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the School District for a specific
purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets heid by the School District as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Payroll Fund: This Agency Fund is used to account for the payroll
transactions of the School District.

Expendable Trust Fund: Expendable Trust Funds are held by the School District as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments
and/or other funds.

Unemployment This Fund is used to account for assets to finance the cost of
Compensation Trust Fund:  unemployment benefits.



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Exhibit H-1

Private
Unemployment Purpose
Compensation  Scholarship Agency
Trust Fund Fund Totals
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 88,193.54 $ 32.24 $ 344 721.00 $ 432,948.78
Investments 5,706.48 5,706.48
Due From State of New Jersey 2,838.72 2.838.72
Total Assets $ 91.033.26 $ 5738.72 $ 344,721.00 $ 441,492.98
Liabilities:
Payabile to Student Groups $ 147 135.95 $ 147.135.95
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 197 585.05 197,585.05
Total Liabilities 344 721.00 344 721.00
Net Assets:
Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes 3 91,033.26 91,033.26
Reserved for Scholarship $ 5,738.72 5738.72
Total Net Assets 91,033,26 5,738.72 96,771.98
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 91,033.26 $ 573872 $ 344 721.00 $ 441.492.98
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Additions:
Employee Contributions
Board Contribution
Total Contributions

investment Earnings:
Depreciation
Interest

Total Additions/(Deletions)

Deductions:
Quarterly Contribution Reports
Unemployment Claims
Scholarship Awarded

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

Unemployment
Compensation

$

Trust

62,290.35
48,992.00

111,282.35

193.75

111,476.10

17,947.03
106,335.44

124,282 47

(12,806.37)

103,839.63

3

91,033.26

88

Private
Purpose

Scholarship

Fund

$  (89.81)

135.98

46.17

806.91

806.91

(760.74)

6,499.46

$ 573872

$

Exhibit H-2

Totals

62,290.35
48,992.00

111,282.35

(89.81)
329.73

111,622.27

17,947.03
106,335.44
806.91

125,089.38

(13,567.11)

110,339.09

$ 96,771.98




Elementary Schools:
Beers Street
Cove Road
Lillian Drive
Middle Road
Raritan Valley
Sycamore Drive

Total Elementary Schools

Middle School:
Hazlet Middle School

Total Middle Schools
High School:
Athletic Fund
Rocket Launchers
Home Economics
Raritan High School
Total High School

Total All Schools

Exhibit H-3
HAZLET SCHOOCL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

89

Balance Balance
July 1, Cash Cash June 30,
2009 Receipts Disbursements 2010
$ 1,665.77 $ 2,441.90 $ 2.311.39 $ 1,696.28
5,962.16 6,510.689 7,235.89 5,237.26
5,740.58 2,661.78 795.11 7,607.25
916.44 1,664.91 1,946.03 635.32
104.66 928.93 1,019.39 14.20
2,426 .85 720.41 468.47 2678.79
17,716.46 14,928.92 13,776.28 18,869.10
6,187.37 12,765.58 10,884 .97 3,067.98
8, 187.37 12,765.58 10,884 .97 8,067.98
31,656.51 49,445 67 71,431.67 9.670.51
61,955.54 216,440.95 214,718.32 63,678.17
13.98 9,628.15 9.617.06 25.07
43,502.05 126,027 .57 122,704.50 46,825.12
137,128.08 401 542 34 418 471.55 120,198.87
$ 161,031.91 $ 429,236.84 $ 443 132.80 $ 147,135.95



Assels

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due To Unemployment
Trust Fund

Payroll Deductions and

Withholdings

Total Liabilities

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit H-4

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2009 Additions Deletions 2010
$ 199,879.82 $ 12,8871,823.71 $ 12,884,118.48 $ 19768505
$ 199,879.82 $ 12,881,823.71 $ 12,884,118.48 $ 197 585.05
$ B6,978.03 3 6,978.03
192.801.79 $ 12,881,823.71 12,877,140.45 % 197.585.05
§ 192 901.79 % 12,881,823.71 $ 12,884 118.48 $ 197.585.05
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the
general long-term liabilities of the School District. This includes serigl bonds outstanding
and obligations under capital leases.
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Exhibit I-3
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Criginal Budget Final Positive/(Negative)
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final To Actual

Revenues
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy $ 425,721.00 $ 425721.00 $ 425 721.00
State Sources;

Debt Service Aid 139,370.00 139,370.00 139,370.00
Total Revenues 585 091.00 565 091.00 565,081.00
Expenditures
Regular Debt Service:

Interest on Bonds 360,002.00 $ 1.00 360,093.00 360,092.50 $ 0.50

Redemption of Principal 205,000.00 205,000.00 205,000.00
Total Regular Debt Service 565,092.00 1.00 565,093.00 565,092.50 0.50
Total Expenditures 565,092.00 1.00 565,083.00 565,092.50 0.50
Excess/{Deficiency) of Revenue

Over/(Under) Expenditures (1.00) {1.00) (2.00} (1.50) 0.50
Fund Balance, July 1 0.88 (.88 0.88
Fund Batance, June 30 $ (0.12) $ {(1.00) $ {1.12) 3 {0.62) $ 0.50
Recapituiation of Excess/(Deficiency) of

Revenues Over/{Under) Expenditures

Budgeted Fund Balance 3 0.00 $ 0.00 5 0.00 3 (1.50) $ 0.50
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STATISTICAL SECTION



FINANCIAL TRENDS/INFORMATION SCHEDULES
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Exhibit J-8
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

(UNAUDITED)
2010
Taxable % of Total
Assessed Rank District Net
Value (Optional) Assessed Value
Taxpayer #1 25,000,000 1 1.05%
Taxpayer #2 23,127,000 2 0.97%
Taxpayer #3 18,662,500 3 0.78%
Taxpayer #4 17,000,000 4 0.71%
Taxpayer #5 17,000,000 5 0.71%
Taxpayer #6 16,592,900 5 0.70%
Taxpayer #7 16,132,500 7 0.68%
Taxpayer #8 15,768,000 8 0.66%
Taxpayer #9 11,323,900 g 0.47%
Taxpayer #10 8,849,000 10 0.38%
Total $ 169,555,800 7.11%
2001
Taxable % of Total
Assessed Rank District Net
Value {Optional) Assessed Value

Taxpayer #1 $ 15,000,000 1 1.44%
Taxpayer #2 11,825,000 2 1.14%
Taxpayer #3 11,689,000 3 1.11%
Taxpayer #4 10,770,100 4 1.03%
Taxpayer #5 8,147,300 5 0.78%
Taxpayer #6 6,683,300 3] 0.64%
Taxpayer #7 6,133,800 7 0.59%
Taxpayer #8 5,795,100 8 0.56%
Taxpayer #9 4,988,400 9 0.48%
Taxpayer #10 4,854,100 10 0.47%
Total $ 85,796,100 8.24%

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor
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Exhibit J-8
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Collected Within the Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year of the Levy® Collections in
Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage Subsequent
June 30 the Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years
2001 $ 19,268,523 $ 19,268,623 100.00% -
2002 21,161,990 21,161,990 100.00%
2003 23,503,420 23,503,420 100.00%
2004 25,492,826 25,402,826 100.00%
2005 23,813,069 23,813,069 100.00%
2006 27,812,997 27,812,997 100.00%
2007 29,606,029 29,606,029 100.00%
2008 30,629,438 30,629,438 100.00%
2009 31,227,811 31,227,811 100.00%
2010 32,025,779 32,025,779 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

a  School taxes are coliected by the Municipa! Tax Collector. Under New Jersey
State Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire
property tax balance, in the amount voted upon or certified prior {0 the end
of the schooi year.
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

General Bonded Debt Quistanding

Net Percentage of
General General Actual Taxabie
Fiscat Year Obligation Bonded Debt Value® of
Ending June 30, Bonds Deductions Quistanding Property
2001 $ 8,173,000 § - $ 8,173,000 0.78%
2002 8,370,000 8,370,000 0.80%
2003 8,240,000 8,240,000 0.78%
2004 8,100,000 8,100,000 0.77%
2005 7,950,000 7,950,000 0.75%
2008 7,795,000 7,795,000 0.73%
2007 7,630,000 7,630,000 0.72%
2008 7,455,000 7,455,000 0.76%
2009 7,265,000 7,265,000 0.30%
2010 7,060,000 7,060,000 0.30%

Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.
a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS



Exhibit J-14
HMAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

[LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population® Personal Income” Personal Income® Rate®
2001 21,282 $ 816,462,648 $ 38,364 3.60%
2002 21,268 832,599,664 39,148 5.20%
2003 21,236 834,489,856 39,296 5.20%
2004 21,129 B37,236,625 39,625 4,40%
2005 20,987 873,604,862 41,626 3.80%
20086 20,987 919,881,197 43,831 4.30%
2007 20,936 970,257,984 46,344 3.90%
2008 20,901 991,627,044 47,444 4.10%
2009 20,947 1,003,382,247 47,901 4.80%
2010 20,942 940,149,208 44 893 9.30%

Source:
? Population information provided by the NJ Department of Labor and Workforce Development.

® Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita
personal income presented.

° Per capita personal income provided by the NJ Department of Labor and Workforce Development.
¢ Unemployment data provided by the NJ Department of Labor and Workforce Development.

108



‘uoneledaid y-\yD JO BWIN 1B SIGRIIEAR JOU UOHBULIOJU|

0L 0l

6 6

8 8

A z

9 9

S FTGVIIVAY LON Y1ivd g

14 ¥

€ S

Z Z

A b

juslAoduil (reuciidd) seaio iy JuBwiAo iy {feuondo) EEELGI =]
fedioiunpy yuey jedioiungy NUEY
eloL [BloL
10 abejuadiad J0 sbejusniad

L0002 0Lo2

G-I HqIyXy

(@3LIanNyNN)
O9Y SHVYIA ININ ANV HYIA INTHHND

SHIAC TN TYdIDNIHA

1018181 TO0OHDS L312VH

[BloL

NETo]s (113

109



OPERATING INFORMATION



SPI02BY |DUUOSIBY 10UISI(] [OUN0S

soakoidwy sul | -lLed pue jnd Jo 31 4 109391 0} pasnipy 0L0Z .

LY ceh £ey LSy oy [t A Zzy - - - [ejoq

- - - - - - - VIN /N WIN a1ed Py

- - - - - - - WIN VIN v/IN B0IAIOG POO4

- - - - - - - VIN W/N v/N sjooyog |enedg
- - - - - L VIN V/IN V/N saoialeg woddng Jsyi0
Z Z Z A { b g VIN VIN VIN uonepodsuel | jidnd
1 G¥ GY 7P 147 44 a4 Y/IN V/IN VIN aduBUSUIE pUE suoieradQ JuBld
g G G G g . G /N VIN V/N ABOjOUYD8 ] UOHBWIOIU} BARNSILILIPY
8 8 8 6 8 8 6 YIN Y/N VIN SOOIAIRG [BAUBD
Ll Ll L 91 9l Gl Gl V/N ¥/IN YIN SOOIAIDG SAHBISIUILPY JRYI0
iz 1z L2 12 lZ 12 e /N VIN V/N SOOIAIOG SABHSIULLPY |00U0S
9 9 9 9 9 . 8 V/N V/N V/N UOIENSIURLPY [RIBUSD
Gz 62 62 62 62 Gz £z VIN V/N YIN SEDIAIAG PBJRISY UORONISUL puUe Juspnig

880IMBG Yoddng
- - - - - - - V/N VIN YIN swelboid uoneonp3 BuinuyuoDinpy
- - - - - - - ¥/N /N WIN sureifioid jooyog aygnduopn
Zl 9 g9 9 9 - 14 VIN V/IN YIN uoonysu| eyo
- - - - - - - Y/N vIN W/IN [EUOITEOOA
0z 4} 43 zl Zi 61 51 YIN YIN WIN uoNeOND3 [e10ads YD
9 9 9 9 S LE 1l YIN v/N Y/N uofieonp3 jeoadg
92 0/2 0.2 0.2 viZ 852 z5Z YIN YN YIN teinbay

UOHONSU|

0102 600¢ 800¢ 1002 900¢ G00C ¥00¢ €00¢ 200¢ 1002 Uieibol4/uonoung

- Haiyxy

(a3.LanvyNN)
SHVIA TVISId NIL 1SV

WVEOO0Hd/NOILINNA A8 SFIAOTHNT LOIMLESIA INTFTVAINDE SNIL-TING

1011 LSId TOOHOS 1312V

o
-

-~



{gys) Arwwng JessiBay jooyoS au; WOl pauielqo ale aduepuaye Ajep abeisre pur wsjoiua Apep sbelany o
YIS paledIia Jo susiBAInba awl-(in) Aluo sapniput yels Buiyoea |
Aepno jeudeo pue ad1A8s 1g9p $59) saun)ipuadxa te1os jenba sainypuadxs BunesadQ =]

=

TN PUSI 18G0100) [BNRLIUE U0 PBSEY JUSW0IUY BIoN

SPIO3D IDUISI] [90IN0G

%6056 %8L°¢ 8002t 1'99¢'¢e Lyl 1901 L'g1 7514 %0L'F £1G°€L AR TN 69¢'E oLoe
%6568 %{za't) L8LL'E AT beel Lyol 166 Lle %.9°¢- ape'el OLy Lyl vy 0€'e 8007
%L¥'G6 %{L1°0) 90iL'E 0€ZEe Lvel el 118 608 Yell € 8E0°CL oyg'eie’ey zze'e 800
%G1 56 Yalby L) 2'69L°¢ 6'9ZE'¢ (R NAS Ly 0l (RN gig %0t FLi'el G80'66€ 97 ¥8e'e 002
%60°G6 %iE0 L) 9'60C'E G'GLE'E L2l 16704 181t tle %66 L BYGEL €L 0L 'Sy 9.£'¢ 900z
—
%16'V6 %0E0 0'6ET'E LoLpe AAY Ly (%2 N 4 (¥4 %9 9pG2L Z88've.L ey bit'e 5002
%¥Z 66 %{920) yRETE ¥'00¥'e L0gL 1ot L-G'1L gle %489 £66°LE PBE'LLLOY o0v'e 002
%HGE 56 %901 0ive’e L'80v'E gLt L1201 161 ele Y%it'g 62211 9¢1'08Z'8E 60¥'E €007
%¥L 66 %ELe FA AN Geie'e LG L L2041 L6l gle g0 7550 £28'E09°GE 7R 2002
%8066 %{02°0) &60rL'e £'€0e’e 102l o0 byl g9ze %it9 L9¥'01 & gso'esE’se § LLEE Looe
abejiacied WO AVAY) L30Y) jooYdS YBIH [SIVEIS Algjuss|y HEIS aliueyd jiding Solfiipladxy  JUdWyBILg iBsy
sougpuany Ape( obelony souepudyy  JuBWH|OJUT 0usg SIPPIAN Buiyoea|  abejusoled 1841800 Buiesado jeosiy
wepmg  ulabueyn Aleq Areq oney Jeyoes}/iidng
afiglusnled  abeloay obelony
(@znanvNn)

SHVYIA TVIOSId NIL 1SV
SOLLSHLVAS ONILVYYIHO

1DMH1SIA TOOHDS L312vH
LL-FRGUS



JUNOD 1DUISI 19G0IC) BNULE Sl U0 Paseq Si JUSWIjOIUT "SUCHIPPE JO ynsal ay; aue Apoedes pue afeloo] sienbs ul saseaIdy] sosayluaied W UMOUS SI uollngsuod [RuBLO jo 18D A BI0N

ebee

008°07

gL't
0504
00561

S35
029
05469

A
(674
00¥'8z

£¢8
05
0sC' Ty

e
218
006" Ly

v6e
ove
G05'Ge

6EC
oZe
000°5E

¥oe

114
0oo'9E

Gloz

BT T3

¥z’

008'0Z

Lig'
0501
0OL'GEL

155
0z9
05469

Ao
02z
oov'ee

it
0s¢e
hisrarady

642
age
008° LY

86¢
are
005’6

99z
oee
00058

06¢
062
000’9

£5E'E

006'02

DB0’L
050°L
00t's6L

126
Geg
051'69

87
62
00¥'8E

423
0se
052°Z¥

L6Z
0sE
006 ¥

98¢
ove
005°GE

iz
0ge
000°6E

412

062
000'9¢

800¢

A

ooL'gl

204
050'L
ooL'ss)

£E5
]
05169

FANA
0ig
00+'82

§4¢
0se
0§Z'Cy

9ig
08¢
006'L¥

Z0E
ore
005'58

08¢
Qe
000'5E

Lde
086e
000'9e

J

~
<
)
[

sev'e

001’8l

650°L
0s50'L
ooL'ssl

08G
09
051'69

15¢
0.
00+'82

GEE
0se
0SZZ¥

gt
05¢€
006ty

LLe
ove
005°6¢

(424
0ce
000'6E

812
a6e
000’9

900e

¥S¥'e

0oL'glL

£50°1
0S0°L
ooL'sslL

166
[1742]
05169

1574
0ig
00¥'8e

S¥e
0se
05Ty

62¢
08€
006"t

L0g
ove
00s5'se

L6Z
0ze
000°6E

28¢
062
000'9¢

|

[Ie}
(o)
]
N

LTA Y

0oL'8t

800'L
6s0'L
001L'661

£88
0z9
05L'69

L9z
1224
00v'8Z

£ve
s
05z'ev

ove
0sE
006t

S0¢
ove
005'5¢

862
0ze
000'GE

8.2
08¢
0O0'9E

02

(@aLanwan)

crF'e

ocl'st

Zre’L
0501
0L'sEL

2y
0z9
051'69

LS¢
174
00v'8Z

9ee
0se
082y

84¢
0g¢
006" Lv

G0¢e
oy
00s'se

[44
oze
000°'s5e

G2
062
ooo'ge

SHYIA TWISId N3L 1S

NCLLYWHCINE DNIGING TO0HDS

10IMLSIA TOOHOS 13T12vH

86£'C

0oL'8L

620°L
050°'L
001661

BiG
029
05169

849¢
0ic
aov'ge

ZEE
05
asz'Ty

s9¢
05¢€
008 LY

ale
ave
006'6GE

voE
0ze
000'Ge

754
06¢
000'9e

1

[l
o
o
o

(24N

0018l

0oL
0s0'L
001661

£L0G
0co
0sl'eg

€57
042
00¥'8z

Geg
0se
052°Z¥

15¢€
0ge
006°L¥

60€
ove
005°5€

114
0zZg
000°sE

69¢
06z
000°98

B0 STOB ] JOLISI] BoNag

L= OHI0

b = [ooyeg yBiy 1omsg
b = {00UIS AP

9 = Algjuaiual]

0LOZ OF SUNL 12 SIO0LOS 30 19GUINN

JUBWII0IUT BJO |

984 auenbg
{8561) Buipung ssusualuiep
HBYIO
WBWoILg
(syuepnig) Anoeden
1894 alenbg
(6561) 100425 YBiH uelLey
[eoyos yhiy
JLUALLHOIY
(spuapris) Auoeden)
1384 azenbg
(5961) I00UYDS JIPPIN 19[ZBH
JOOUSS BIpDIY
JUOLH G
{sspyg) Aoede)
188 aienbg
{£961) 100YDS BALQ AoWEdAg
piH=TT e F1N b
(swispnig) Ayoedern
a4 sienbg
(7963) j00yag AsfjeA uBlLiey
UDLILO U
(swepmg) Auoeden
@95 amnbg
{1561} jooyog peoy 2ippiw
JUSWHOIUT
(swepnig) Aoeden
1934 aienbg
(29617 100UDT SAUC] UBHHT
sl
{swlapmg) Auoeden
1994 auenbg
{2961) 10OYIS pPEOY SRV}
Wsdfoius
(siwepmg) Apeden
984 arenbg
(996]) Aejeaws|] P siaag
Aeswalg

BUIpING ARSI

112



SPI0oa! JOUISI 8%IN0g

(£71-92:v9 OV I'N PUB Z'1-9Z°%9 D'V N}

SL'¥90°ZEL’'6 & OL6ELGZSE ¢ /90pS250°1 $

Z6F.S'9PG § BGOSLQ90L $ BPPLEOZE §

OL'S69'G5. ¢ L/'6B6EZ69 $ ZLP9r 026 S

VY4943 19pun pauyap S Saloe) jooydg

S8IIIoR (004D [el0;]

VIN
VIN
ViN
VIN
VIN
WIN
VIN
VIN
YIN
WiN

{8y F 195067

SSRIoe 4 j00UDS,

XXX~ 92-000-L L

0i0Z B
6007 v
8002
Lo0e
9a0e
G00e
¥002
€002
Z007

1002

SALLNIOVYA TOOHIS HOd JONYNIALNIVIA
A3HINDIY ~ SFHNLIANIDX3 31N SIANN

G2'$90'906 09985 1vE 6.606'SCL S8 L5P'eS 1942611 R9/Z8'84 00'865'cQ £9°088'v0 60°'€/9°0L
£A'EE9'CH8 zo'L99'/e¢ O Ere'veL cLivRES §G'een L LLBLB' 2L 82 /6£'28 12°886°E9 25'858°'69
260G 8L BE PGS 662 ¥L'8.L'6LL £4°9/9'gy 08'82£'89 ZE'€Z1'69 Z6'660'CL 86°0L¥'05 £9'T/B'L9
207108002 YE'99Z'LGE £4°819'v/ EC VL oF LG GLE'RG 95 ¥LL'GS 8ELEV'ES £.'gte'8s 25825719
98 ¥SB'ELOD'L 98°618'vay 00852001 00'€0¥'S5 00Eiv' s 00'90£'0L 00°9e6'2L 00'8LZ'eg 00°'1L+0'68
00'ZI5162'L 00°00L'2LS 00'00g' L8 00°2¥0'¥9 00'202°16 00'Z8e'erl 00'8LE8'6EL 00'259'001 00°s0p'251L
IGEP9'6LE £5°092'90E COLALLB 00°192'%9 00'gP0'LL 00'1LG'/8 00'9L6'2Y 0021219 00'651'69
00 +99'vaL 00'1LR'9zZE 00°$95°Gt 00°622'8¢ 00'0EL2r 00'€50'05 00°'96.°25 00'Sr9'S/ ooove'eel
55 ZZF Y8 0 ISP LBL yleg'aLl 90'528'c9 €0'P00° LG £5°205'%0 16'696'6E 9L G0P'cy B8LZi6'7EL
09'9l2'0b0'L $  Z0'9E5'EEE FPLOPE'GEL  $ ZECEPLO $ £0'S8S68 $ ZLSLLO6 $ 00OLYFSE $ SFEZLZW. $§ Z6E/508 &
N jooyosg ybiH joousg wely aauq Aetusula|g Aejusws|= Aeusws|g Aejusluais Asgjuawiag
ueey SIPPIN 181ZEH 2JOWEIAG Agjjep uelley  DEOM 2(PPIA BALICT UBLI'T pPEOY SA0D) 198G sledyg
{a3LanvnNn)

61-7 Nalyxg

SHYIA TWOSId NIL 18V

JONVNILINIVIA 036IN0D3Y 40 1NAAHOS

10141810 TO0HDIS L31ZvH



HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

June 30, 2010
(UNAUDITED)

School Package Policy.
Building and Contents (All Locations)
Boiler and Machinery
General Automobile Liability
School Board Legal Liability
Employers Liability
Workers' Compensation
Umbrella - Liability
Liability CAP Program
Accident Coverage for Volunteers

Student Accident Insurance:

Surety Bonds:
Treasurer
Board Secretary/Business Administrator
Food Services Director

List Insurance Company:
(1}  Zurich Insurance Co.
(2) Chubb Insurance Co.
(3) NJSBAIG
{4y MOCSSIF
(8) Maskin Insurance Co.
(6) Selective Insurance Co.
(7y Fireman's Fund
(8) Life Insurance of North America

Source: District records

Coverage

76,170,572 (1)

INCLUDED w/Above (1)

114

(

(
1,000,000 (1)
6,000,000 (3)
2,000,000 (4)
2,000,000 (4)
10,000,000 (1)
50,000,000 (7)

2500 (8)

5,000,000 (5)

275,000 (6)
125,000 (8)

Exhibit J-20

Deductible

$ 5,000
5,000
1,000
5,000
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Hutchins, Farrell, Meyer & Allison, P.A, F%’ig%%%&f%

Certified Public Accountants = Business & Financial Advisors

Robert H. Hutchins, CPA, CVA | Monmouth County Office
Eugcne M. Falrrcll, CPA, RMA, CFP 912 Highway 33« Suite 2
Robert W, Allison, CPA, RMA Frechold, NT 07728
Alan E. Meyer, CPA/ABV (732) 409-0800
Joann DiLieto, CPA Fax: (732) 866-9312

Patrice R. Antonucci, CPA Ocean County Office

Thomas L. Stetson, CPA _ 512 Main Street + PO Box 1778
Toms River, NJ 08754
(732) 240-5600

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING T (732)505-8358
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANGCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Hazlet School District

County of Monmouth

Hazlet, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Hazlet
School District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the Board of Education of the
Hazlet School District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated October 28, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Hazlet Board of Education's
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hazlet Board of
Education’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Hazlet Board of Education’s internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Board of Education’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
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Exhibit K-1
Page 2 of 2

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Hazlet School District

County of Monmouth

Hazlet, New Jersey

Page 2

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Hazlet Board of
Education’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

However, we noted certain other matters involving internal control that we have reported
to the Board of Education of the Hazlet School District in a separate Auditor's
Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial, Compliance and
Performance, dated Qctober 28, 2010.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
the Hazlet Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and
other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert W. Allison
Licensed Public School Accountant
‘ No. 887
Hutchins, Farrell, Meyer & Allison, P.A.

October 28, 2010



Hutchins, Farrell, Meyer & Allison, P.A. pm“ixgh;bjt ong

Certified Public Accountants + Business & Financial Advisors

Robert H. Hutchins, CPA, CVA Meonmouth County Office
Bugene M. Farrell, CPA, RMA, CFp '
Robert W. Allison, CPA, RMA

212 Highway 33 = Suite 2
Freehold, NJ 07728

Alan E. Meyer, CPA/ABY (732) 409-0800

Joann Dikieto, CPa Fax: {732) 866-9312
Patrice R. Antonucci, CPA Ocean County Office
Thomas .. Stetson, CPA : 512 Main Sireet » PO Box 1778

Toms River, NI 08754

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAYER2) 2005600
A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRANM " (732) 505-

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE

WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Hazlet Schoof District

County of Monmouth

Hazlet, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Hazlet School District, in
the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, with the types of compliance requirements
described in"the U.S. Office of Management and Budget ("OMB") Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010. Hazlet Board of Education’s major state programs are identified
in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the responsibility of the Hazlet
Board of Education's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Hazlet Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department
of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single
Audit Poiicy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards,
OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the Hazlet Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as 'we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Hazlet Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.
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Page 2 of 3

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Hazlet School District

County of Monmouth

Hazlet, New Jersey

Page 2

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Hazlet School District, in the County of
Monmouth, State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Internail Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Hazlet School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal and state
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Hazlet Board of
Education’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal or state program in order to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey
OMB Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Hazlet Board of Education’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Page 3 of 3

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Hazlet School District

County of Monmouth

Hazlet, New Jersey

Page 3

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee,
management, the Hazlet Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of
Education, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

At U

Robert W. Allison
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 897
Hutchins, Farrell, Meyer & Allison, P.A.

October 28, 2010
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Exhibit K-5
Page 1 of 2
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

June 30, 2010

1. General

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance include federal and state award activity of the Board of Education ("Board"),
Township of Hazlet, School District ("District”). The Board is defined in Note 1 to the
Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from
federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed
through other government agencies, are included on the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance.

2. Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance are
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in
the Food Service Fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These
bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements, The
information in these schedules is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments. and Non-Profit QOrganizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund on a
GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (*RSI") are presented for the
General Fund and Special Revenue Fund fo demonstrate finance-related legal compliance
in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the
audit year whereas, for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent
year or when expenditures have been made.

The General Fund is presented in the accompanying Schedules on the modified accrual
basis, with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the
current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.87.(A3521). For GAAP
purposes, that payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the State
deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent year. The Special
Revenue Fund is presented in the accompanying Schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The Special Revenue Fund also
recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A.
18A.22-4.2. '

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(9,088.00)
for the General Fund and ${125,774.67) for the Special Revenue Fund. See the Notes to
Required Supplementary information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the
medified accrual basis of accounting for the General and Special Revenue Funds. Awards
and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on
a GAAP basis as presented on the following page:
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Exhibit K-5

Page 2 of 2
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
June 30, 2010
3. Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements {Cont'd)
Federal State Total
General Fund $1,977,310.20 $ 14,250,962.58 $ 16,228272.78
Special Revenue Fund 1,197,457.76 44.304.00 1,241,761.76
Capital Projects Fund 479,922.00 472,922.00
Debt Service Fund 138,370.00 139,370.00
Food Service Fund 216.840.74 13.612.98 230,553.72

Total Awards and

Financial Assistance $ 3.391.708.70 $ 14,928171.56 $ 18.319.880.26

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the State of New Jersey contributed $75,371.00 to
the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund for normal pension and $1,415,567.00 for post-
retirement medical benefits on behalf of the District.

4, Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedules agree with the amounts reported in the
related federal and state financial reports.

5. Federal and State Loans Quistanding

Not applicable.
8. Other

Revenue and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current-
year value received and current-year distributions respectively. The amount reported as
TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the
District for the year ended June 30, 2010. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents
the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of Social Security
contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2010.
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HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FiNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Resuils

Financiai Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal controi over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness{es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance materiat to basic financia!
staterments noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
1) Material weakness{es) identified?

2) Significant deficlencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknasses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section .510(a) of Circular A-1337

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number{(s)

84.394

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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Unqualified

yes X 1o

yes X none reported

yes X no

yes X ne

yes X none reported
Unguatified

yes X no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

ARRA ESF Equalization Aid

$300,000.00

yes

no




State Awards

Dollar threshold used io distinguish between type A and type B programs?

HAZLET SCHOCL DISTRICT

Exhibit K-8
Page 2 of 4

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued)

Auditee gualified as low-risk auditee?

Type of auditor's report issued in compliance for major programs:

Internal Control over major programs:

1} Material weakness{es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Any audi findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with NJOMB Circular 04-047

identification of major programs:

State Grant/Project Number{s)

10-495-034-5120-G78

10-495-034-5120-014
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$405.651.00

X yes no

Ungualified

yes X no

yes X ___none reported

yes X no

Name of State Program

Egualization Aid

Transportation Aid




Exhibit K-6
Page 3 of 4

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
(continued)

Section lf - Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the material weaknesses, significant deficiencies, and instances of
noncompliance related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in
accordance with paragraphs 5.18 through 5.20 of Government Auditing Standards.

None reported.
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Exhibit K-6

Page 4 of 4
HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
{continued)
Section il - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies audit findings required to be reported by section .510(a) of Circular A-133
and NJOMB Circular 04-04.

None reported.
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Exhibit K-7

HAZLET SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the general-purpose financial
statements and federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with

Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, and OMB Circular A-133 (section .315 (a)(b) )
and NJOMB Circuiar 04-04,

STATUS OF PRIOR-YEAR FINDINGS

Not applicable.
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